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ASSEtii..YMAN WAYt£ R. BRYANT (Dudr.an): This is a 
continuation of the hearing dealing with the Edison Street Bridge. I 

would like to thank you, Commissioner, for coming back. Will you and 

your staff please come up to the witness table? 

Let me start out by saying, f.irst, thank you for the 

information you submitted. However, I do have a couple of questions. 

We asked for the specifications and the contract documents which were 

actually executed, but those have not been submitted to the Committee. 

I am wondering why that was not done. We also asked for costs for the 

temporary repairs. to that Bridge; that was also not done. lt is very 

difficult to ask questions when the specifications. and contracts are 

missing. 

FROM AUDIENCE: The contracts were not submitted? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Also, the specifications for the bid 

were not submitted. 

Cott4ISSIONER ROGER A. BODMAN: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Weinstein will see if 

he can get those documents brought right down. As to the temporary 

repairs, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Freidenrich may well be able to give you an 

estimate on those. He has had an opportunity to do that. 

Jack, what are the costs? Are they for just repaving it now 

and tearing it up in the spring? 

ASSISTANT Cot44ISSIONER JACK FREIDENRICH: Yes. The problem I ran into, 

Mr. Chairman -- I am trying to develop a response to that question -­

was, the purpose of putting an overlay down is to protect the work you 

do on the deck. If you did it temporarily, it would not preclude the 

intrusion of the deicing salts over the wintertime. Not only that, the 

deicing chemicals would not be precluded by a temporary asphalt 

pavement, but once it got down onto the concrete deck, it would also be 

trapped there, so it couldn't even run off in any subsequent rainfall. 

So, as a practical matter, such a solution would be 

counterproductive to the very work we are trying to do. In other 

words, correct the deck defects, and then put something there so that 

those defects will not reoccur in a very short time. 

In addition then, we would have to come back in the spring 

and remove that temporary overlay, and we would quite probably nave to 
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redo some · of the deck. repair we did that had been subjected to the 

deicing chemicals. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: But what · you are telling me is, there 

are no costs? We have no idea what those costs could be? We 1 re 

talking about one season, so it -is not like·. we are doing five y~ears_ of 

this deicing· material going over. We are talking.·about one season. If 

we look at the mild winters we have had in the ·past, I Jnean,_you might 

be talking about one major snowstorm. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: . Except the Bridge tends to ice up more 

readily, does it not? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: Yes, . sooner than approach 

roadways. · Quite frankly, we never did try to develop t_he cost because 

of the-- You know, we could · not figure out to · what end. We have 

· determined to be sure to keep the deck with as good a. ridable surface 

as possible over this next winter. Once we concluded that there was no 

practical reason to do that, we never· pursued it any-further to develop 

a cost. frankly, it was rather. difficult to try to determine what it 

was we would be seeking to estimate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: , Well, my understanding -- and I don 1 t 

want to belabor the point because it is a minor point-- What we are 

trying to figure out is, what was. the actual cost in dollar-s, assuming, 

you told me, you were going to have a lip of maybe an inch or a qua~~er 

of an inch if you overlaid it and then had to remove it. That is what 

you are telling me would happen if you overlaid the Bridge because of 

that gap -- what it would cost to put it down, what it would cost to 

take it up. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: Because. it would . make 

vulnerable the deck underneath, even if _we had only one storm, and . the 

deicing salts intruded to the concrete deck below that overlay and then 

was trapped there · so that it would be . working away · at that concrete 

through the whole winter season. We have learned through·· many years 

that if you overlay concrete without having an impermeable layer 

between that bituminous material. and the concrete deck, that is more 

deleterious to the concrete structure than . leaving the concrete 

exposed. There when it is exposed to the deicing chemicals, the next 
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·rain comes along and at least washes it off. That does not happen when 

you have a bituminous concrete layer over a Portland. Cement concrete 

structure. The salts just lay there and are trapped; and they continue 

to work away at the deck. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MlLLER: 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: 

Mr. Chairman,. may I ask a question? 

Yes •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Let's say you were to . go .ahead and put 

.this temporary pavement down, wouldn't you have to put that .out to bid 

also? If you are going to do what is being thought &bout here, put the 

layer over the . top of the cement to protect it, and then put your 

temporary macadam or something -- wouldn't that have to go out to bid 
too? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: It is not iriconceivable that 

you could do that by a change-order to the existing ·contract. But 

again, and maybe it is my engineering mentality I'm stuck with, as a 

practical matter, it just, you know; would not be to any ·end. It 

wouldn't do anything for .us, but it could create significant additional 

costs and time, again incidentally, in the springtime to remove all of 

that material, and then clean off the deck so it would be in a clean 

condition for the application of the final material. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I don't want to be argumentative, but we 

can't determine whether that was a significant cost. That was the 

quest ion posed, and we do not have that answer because we did not do 

that. So, we don't know that. lhat was the whole exercise, to find 

out sq we could make some ~ental judgments as to what those costs would 

be. 

I didn't say there was going to be significant cost· 

involved. We asked a direct question; that is, for you.to give us the 

cost, and you tell me you didn't do it. I think basically what we are 
doing is conjecture because we don't know~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Mr. Chairman, though, common sense 

dictates really. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I am only dealing with cost. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I recognize what you're saying, but to 

have these people try to work up the cost-- They would probably come 
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.. in with a cost fig~re just as much as the bridge job . would cost . in the 

_ contract itself,. because you h~ve -to put down the under layer, youJ have 

to put the · temporary down,· and you ·have to take it back up again~ · You _· 

_have the. cost of not - only that, but the traffic conjestion twice 

instead of once. l thin~( just common· !;len$e · dictates it is going to 

-cost you almost as much,_ if not more, in the long run. 

ASSE~BL YMAN . BRYANT: I said I am . not . going to· belabor it; 
. . 

that is the· reason l asked just for the co.st. It is_ just a -simple 

question,· and then I would have knowri.-

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH:· Mr. Chairman, if it would be 

helpful, l could call· our chief engineer of design . and ask him to 
. . . - . . : . . 

calculate the. cost of p.utting down an inch and a half of. bit-uminous 
. - . 

concrete all over :the Edison Bridge, and also: to calculate the cost of 

·removing it in the springtime. If that would_be useful • 

. _ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: · __ I think that might be helpful. At ·least 

we_would know. 

Let_ me ask anolher question since we don't have the 

contract. Is there a liquidated damages clause in the contract?----

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Yes, there is a liquidated 

damages clause in all of our· contracts •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: What does this one say? 

. ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: · I would really have to check 

the specifications· to· determine the ·amount of liquidated damages 

incorporat·ed in :that contract. _· 

ASSE~BL YMAN MILLER: May I ask, what are liquidated· damages? 
. ~ . . ' . . 

When you say "liquidated damages," what do you mean by that expression? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: _Liquidated damages means that if you 

can't perform the contract bn time yo\,J start paying· us for not 

completing the contract within a specified time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: .- Okay, but don't you have to have another 

clause, in there_ saying if they complete it ahead of time they get paid 

a premium for doing so? 

ASStMBL YMAN ·BRYANT: - I am not_ sure whether they have to or 

not. You don't have to have that. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I think law dictates that if you put it 

one way, you have to have it the other way also. At least that is the 

way it was at the municipal level. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: The question I was asking came up at the 

last hearing. We are still getting the same·answers; no onehas looked 

at:it. If w~ had gotten it, I would have looked at it myself to see 

.what the liquidated damages clause was. I· mean, we specifically asked 

you that. (speaking to witnesses) You said you didn't know at that 

time. In the week since, you haven't looked at the liquidated damag~s 

clause? That was-what we wanted to have information about. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. I 

don't recall that that was a direct question. I do recall that there 

was a discussion about a penalty and an offsetting incentive clause. 

But forgive me, I don't recall that there was a specific question asked 

about the amount of specified liquidated damages. That is a· simple 

question to answer because it would be in the specifications. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask the next question then. Are 

we planning to exercise the liquidated damages clause, assuming we are 

not getting this work done? The completion date is November 16. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Twenty-sixth. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Pardon? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: November 26. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: No, I don't believe so. As 

I indicated, there were discussions with the·second bidder, who became 

the apparent low bidder, as to the feasibility of completing that 

project within the time specified because of the temperature sensitive 

material that was included in .. the contract. I believe there is 

language in the specifications which provides for appropriate 

extensions of time when the work specified, for good reason, cannot be 

accomplished within the time specified. It is my expectation that, 

based on the information I brought you last time-- It is our staff's 
' ' 

conclusion, as a practical matter, given the information that was 

brought to· us about the time it would take to get the joint material 

and the temperature requirements that come along afterward, that the 

job could not be completed this construction season. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask you another question. Did 

your staff also cone lude that on Sept~mber 16 you knew it could not be 

completed, but the contract was not signed until October 1? · And yet 

ther~ was a $900,000 differential, or even if you gave the first bidder · 

his $375,000, ·or you misquoted him a $50o,ooo· differential--- Maybe the 

. sense. of what shou.ld be done is, rebid it anyway because of this wide 

gap. from my understanding, the whole purpose of :the contrilct frQm the 

beginning, was to get it done before November. Now, all of a sudden, 

. on September 16, ·according to the documents you submitted, we knew that 

nobody could do . that, and we had this· wide . disparity · in terms of 

price. It is not going to be done until the spring, so we have plenty 

of time to rebid it~ 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: The award was . made, I 

. believe, on September 12. At that time,· the Department, recognizing 

the strong desire to have this work done this particular construction 

season, moved ahead after it had been determined · that we coulci not 

award to the original apparent low bidder~ We moved· ahead and took an 

action to make an award to the second bidder, _who then became the 

apparent low bidder. It . is my recollection -- · ~d I believe this was 

included in the information furnished to you . -- that there was a · 
. . 

commission action which recommended and made.the award on.September 12. 

It was not until after the contractor was not,ified of the 

award -- if I re.call the sequence correctly ..:._ that he brought up the 

problem on the delivery of the joint material, which, in turn, would 

create the problems with the temperature sensitive materials. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Why didn't· we cancel· the contract? I 

m.ean, I don't understand. When you say you made an award-- The 

contracts were. not signed until October i, from what you submitted to· 

us. 

ASST.. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: That's right. Also 

submitted was a· commission action which made the award. An award is 

made, and the contract itself,.based on that decision, is mailed to the 

contractor for execution. He has 10 clays wi.thin which to return that 

executed contract. It is then executed by the Department. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask you about the first bidder. 

Do they submit projects they are currently working on so you can 

determine their rate? In other words, when you decide they have 

exceeded their rate in the documents, do they actually submit contracts 

they are current 1 y working on to you, so you·. can tell whether they hav-e 

exceeded their rate or not? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDtNRICH: I believe we discussed that 

at length last time. Let me see if I can say · it again._ When a 

contractor submits a bid on a project, one of the things he has to 

submit is an updated financial ·statement. That includes work on hand, 

outstanding commitments, his whole updated financial statement. One of 

the things done after we receive bids, and before a determination on 

award is made, is an analysis of his residuQl financial capacity. So, 

yes, that information is submitted with his bid. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: And the first bidder was $135,000 and 

some odd dollars over his financial capacity from the information you 

received? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: No, he had-- The analysis 

by our Bureau of Contract Administration determined that he had a 

negative posture, a minus, I believe, in those answers that were 

developed by the staff--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That's what I meant when l said over; -

I meant negative. In other words, he did not have the capacity needed 

in order to do the contract by $135,642. He was short of sufficient 

financial capacity. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: I don't believe that is what 

that information says. I t_hink whE!t it says is, his posture- was minus 

$135,000. If I understand that correctly -- and I just got back from a 

meeting late last night-- he bid $1.4 million; he had a minus capacity 

of $135,000, so he was short by the am()unt, I believe, of his whole 

bid, plus $135,000 more. In other words, the first number-- I am 

trying to locate that answer. The first number that's shown is his 

residual capacity. That capacity--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me refer you to: Assembly 

Transportation Committee, Subject -Answers to Questions of October 7, 
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· 1985, dated October 11 ~ 1985, Quest ion No~ 10. i'What was Pressure 

Concrete's financial status at the time of the Edison Bridge decision?" 

The answer reads: "Based on the information . ·available, DOT from 

Pressure Concrete, the firm fell $135,642 short of · sufficient 

·capacity." Now, if I read that right, it means if he bi:d $1.6 million, 

he really had a $1.5 million capacity at that time •. · 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: Well, I would read it the 

same way. Even on that basis, you know; the regulation· is that he must 

have sufficient capacity to cover the amount of his bid. · 

·ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I understand that. I am Just asking you 

if thi~ information is correct. That is basically what I am saying. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Isn't the real issue the fact that he 

really didn't want the bid? He really didn't have any incentive to run 

out and get himself an extra line of credit; he didn't want the job 

because he perceived that he fell short by $375,000. · That concerns me 

because --you can correct me if I amwrong, Mr. Freidenrich --doesn't 

the Department have the authority to provide · change-orders for an 

amount up to 20~o of the cost of the total contract? He could have been 

given an extra allowance for that $375,000 •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: There wasn't any contract, Tom, at this 

point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well, you are in a position to . negotiate 

with the apparent low bidder on the contract., are you not? 

ASST. COMMISSlONER fREIDENRICH: Absolutely not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You can't? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: Under no circumstances are 

we allowed to negotiate once we have a competitive bid· submitted. The 

only time we ever negotiate anything after that is if ~n unanticipated 

condition occurs where we need some additional work done during the 

life of the contract.· There are provisions in our specifications to 

negotiate for that extra work at a mutually acceptable price. If· we 

are unable to do that, we then also have the ability under our contract 

to require the contractor to perform that additional work on what we 

call "a force account basis," time and materials. 



ASSEMBLYMAN fOV: Then you could have held his feet to the 

fire and insisted that he perform the job for that price if you would 

have accepted his represent at ion that he had reduced his backlog of 

other work and, therefore, had an additional $185,000 worth of credit. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENR1CH: .. ·Mr. foy, I believe we 

discussed that at some length at the last . hearing. I tell .you that 

upon advice of legal counsel, we never got to that question. We had no 

choice but to rejecl his bid.as not responsive• 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: What I am trying to find out, Mr. 

Freidenrich, is-- He bid approximately $1.4 million, and he. indicated 

he made a mistake regarding ...... by his. estimates -- $375,000 worth of 

materials and work. I am trying to find out if you had the flexibility 

under the laws and regulations of the Department whereby you could have 

negotiated in the $375,000 he said he left on the· table. If you could, 

he could have then done the work, and it still would have been about 

$400,000 or $500,000 ·less than the Schiavo·ne Company's bid. But what · 

you are telling me is you didn't have that fleiibility. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: It is my opinion that we do 

not have that flexibility. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: All right. Then that question is moot. 

You could not have dealt with it in a fashion of attempting to correct 

his bid for him subsequent to the fact. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: That is right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Okay; all right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: · My quest ion is, since you have this 

financial ability or rating, and looking at your responsibility to save 

us as much money as possible in this. State-- One of tlis major projects 

is with the New York/New Jersey Port Authority, and if I am not 

mistaken from your previous testimony, th~ Department had knowledge of 

this, based on his financial statement. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: We have information on just 

what his projects are, but I don't recall. saying that one of them was 

the Port Authority. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Here is my line of thinking so you can 

understand what I'm saying in terms of saving taxpayers' money. That 
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is a public job. . -Payments on that public .job are public . also. 

Therefore, assuming we ~an lock a person into a $900,000 saving and he 

sent -a letter on,. September 5, 1 think it was, that ·he .had aggressively 
. . . - . 

reduced his outstanding obligations by ju.st mere calls to· the places 

wher~ . ·_ he was working; we might find · 09t fro"' the Department ' s 

standpoint that_ $135,000 in the l<ind of contracts_ he is· doing ~auld 
. . .. -

have .. been. reduced . from his· -contract. In othel' ·words, let's assume he . : 
J -' - •• 

got- ·paid _ 20% from the -New _York/New . Jer!:ley. Port ·Authority on :a . $2 
• '<. - . . 

m-illion- project~ That's $ZOO ,000. which would have been reduced in· 

terms of _·increasing his rating. let's assume he also listed other 

municipal projects which_ wer.e public . information.- If we . had made 

i.nquirj.es., we could· have locked him into_ that ·contract because his 

rating then could havebeen increased. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER · fREIDENRICH: Mr~ Chairman, it. is . my 

understanding that the information he submitted, the-updated financial 

statement, includes information on the·outstanding work he still has to 

complete, not -the sum of his .. original contract, but the amount that 

reroains to be completed from the original contract • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: · What I am asking is, if that information 

was submitted, according to your testimony_-- l think we let those bids 

in July or August, between August arid when we made this decision, which 

is a month,_ and people pay monthly. We had all the information; and 

then he sent us a letter basically saying; "I have aggressively done 

work since I submitted that information that will reduce what 1 need." 

That information is readily available if we make the calls. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: . Mr. Chairman, ·if I may, please. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . If the intent is to save .the taxpayers 

dollars.· I don 1 t know; ·I mean, I am asking that question. The only· · 

reason. I asked that, Mr. Miller, is because they told me there are 11 

· other · people who are· following the same situation, and we never lost 

one in.the last four or five years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: If I may-- You know, I agree with you. 

If we lost $900,000 because of $137;000, I would be concerned too. But 

on the other hand, let 1 s look at it from __ their side of the table. 

Suppose they had called, and suppose they did say, "Oh, we're satisfied 
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by these telephone calls that this man is whole; he's okay, we can go 

. with him." But then let's say he fell on his nose. This Committee 

would then be investigating these people as to why they awarded it when 

they had nothing in black and white to substantiate what the man said 

over the phone, and. we took somebody else's '\'fOrd for. it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . What j f l tell· you this is--

ASSEMBLYMAN ·MILLER: Now, wait a minute, Wayne. What you 

want them to do is deviate from the set procedure for the sake of 

trying to save $900,000, which I admire. I agree with you, if we can 

do it, fine. But you can't .expect these people to stick. their necks 

out because then we would be in here ch.opping them down for doing 

something that was contrary to the rules and regulations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No, no, I am not asking them to do 

that. . I'm saying, you can make the call and you can get a· letter 

sent. The New York/New Jersey Port Authority doesn't want--

ASSEMBLYMAN· MILLER: They had the opportunity. They sent 

them a letter asking them to support or to come in with something, a 

bond, or some other-- Why didn't he send the letter back and say, 

"Here is our financial situation right now," so they could accept it? 

They didn't do that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me explain. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Wait a minute. They sent a letter 

saying, "Look, believe us. Believe us, we're okay. We've reduced 

everything; we're fine," but there was nothing in black and white. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: · But, see, Assemblyman Miller, that is not 

really what he said. · 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That's not my point. My point is--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Never mind the incentive. What's the 

rule? 

ASSEMBLYMAN t3RYANT: I am going to tell you how you get to 

·the rule. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Go ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: My point is, you have an individual who 

has made the low bid. The individual then finds out that he should 

have changed ~he bid by $335,000. That is not an incentive for him to 
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supply the information, but you; as a representative of the State, have 

information on where :he got the contracts from. - He .has given _you 

information that he reduced those contracts-since he submitted his-bid,. 

which you could easily check and get written, to lock him into State 

money. That's the point • 

. _ ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I don't disagree wit~ you~ What· I'm 

saying is, they can't do it legally because· there is nothing in blac-k 

and white from these people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: - 1 f you call the New York/New Jersey Port 

Authority and say, "Send me a ·letter as to wh;at yolj paid them since 

July,'.' they will send you a letter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: That is not· what the rule says. The 

rule doesn't say that. · . The rule says "they shall submit," and they 

didn't submit. They just gave us--

ASSEMBLYMAN rOY: You know, I just· had an opportunity this 

morning to review Pressure-toncrete's letter. Wasn't this a situation 

in which Pressure Concrete was really trying to have it both ways, and, 

in a sense, was taking advantage of the inflexibility- of the 

departmental regulations?_ 

Let me give you an· example. I will read Falcone's letter 

dated August ·13. He must have-· had some good lawy-er write this letter 

because it ·is very clever, as far as I am concerned. He writes to John 

Walz, Chief, Bureau of Contra~t Administration, regarding- U.S. 9, 

Section 1-A, Miqdlesex·County: "Gentlemen:. We acknowledge receipt of 

your letter dated· August 5, 1985,- in _which. you state that due to the 

significant increase in our outstanding contracts to be completed since 

the time of our pre-qualification, you request th~t we provide an 

additional line -of credit to· increase our financial capacity, or state 

that our financial position has changed substantially, and thus display 

our ability to finance the project."- So, you have asked for one of two 

·things. Either an actual line of credit, which is an instrument -- a 

commercial instrument · -- ot ·you have asked for evidence that their 

financ_iaJ position has changed substantially. 

Now I don't know what you accepted in the past in the way of 

evidence, but what h~ says~ certainly, I would never accept~ lt says, 
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"We are aware that your ,letter was written pr,ior to our notification to 

your office that our proposa,l contEJ.ined certain ite.ms of work which 

were omitted, and Which totaled a substantial value and, therefore, we 

had requested permission to withdraw our proposal and to be relieved of 

any contractual responsibilities relative to this project." So he is 

again advising them, "We don't want this job." 

Then he goes on_ to say, to try to _cover himself, I guess, for 

future work or for posterity, or whatever: i•I can therefore only 

answer. your letter of August 5 with regard to our ·financial plan· to 

perform the above~referenced contract as if there were no omission, and 

we were satisfied with our bid proposal price, and state that we have 

been aggressively reducing our backlog of. uncompleted work, and, 

therefore, would propose to complete the above-referenced project 

without providing additional lines of credit assigned specifically for 

this project." 

He is playing a very cute game with the Department, in my 

opinion. He doesn't really want the job. As a consequence, he doesn't 

go far enough in terms of what you have . the authority to accept in 

providing you with additional financial data that would enable -him to 

do the job, becau$e he doesn't really want to do it •. It seems to me 

that if we are goirig to point a finger, or find the culprit, these guys 

are the culprits to that extent. 

I am a little mystified as to why this wasn't followed up by 

_ saying specifically, "Show us Where your backlog has been reduced and 

how you have additional financial capacity." Of course, that may be-­

l don't know why you didn't follow it up to that extent, whether it be 

phone calls--· I· don't think phone calls are the answer. I would have 

said, "Produce evidence that you r.eceived additional payments and that 

your outstanding backlog has been reduced. Give it to us." 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: He has been asked that, Tom. In an 

order before this, he was asked for it and he refused to give it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well, it says, "request for an additional 

line of credit or submission of an updated financial statement." He 

didn't submit that. It was the fourteenth when he got that. Okay? 

· And he never submit ted it subsequent to that. See, his letter was 

dated the thirteenth. 
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. . 

-ASSEMBLYMAN Mlll.ER:- _Okay. Mr. Falcone -ind1cated. that 

Pressure " Concrete would not be supplying the: additional financial 

information requested. They. would not be. supplying the 'information 

that they had to have in. black and white so ·they could do what they had . 

to do to award the~ contract to thein. I am lpokif1g ·at· the ne~t draft.·. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: · The memo from. Walz to Fteidenrich? 

. ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: _ That 's right. There is a sentence in 

. tt1e second paragraph · _.;., -John Falcone, President~- · _ If they are_ not­

. going . to supply -the .. additional information, '• J don't . think: the. 

Department- of:·Traf1sportation has any choice in the metter but to go. to 

_the next· bidder~ ·Again, remember , they· are looking for a time element 

here. · They want to get the job done. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Mr. Foy,- if. I may. . In reading this 

correspondeMce' . the letter you . just re'ad . was dated August 13 . from 

·Falcone ·to Walz--. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Right. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: ... ·-explaining that position. ·on the 

previous piece of paper in my package --. I don't know if yours is 

collated the same -way ...;_ there is.- a -letter dated August 14--

. ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yes, the fourteenth, which was a follow-yp 

· letter • 

·. COMMISSIONER BODMAN: --in reference to a· phone conversation 

~hich supposedly took pla6e on August 13. Presumably· that lettei had 
. . 

not arr_ived in our Department -- I don't have . an arrival date ........ but 

apparently. a·· conversat:lon took place between Walz-- I '11 read/ it: 
. . 

"Dear Mr. :Falcone: As per telephone conversations with Mr. John Walz 

and myself on: August 13, 1985". _;_ which is the s.ame date as the letter 
. . . 

you just read -- nyou are to -provide our office·. with your reply to our 

.. request f~r .. an additional line_ of credit~- or submission of an updated 

financial ·statement." That seems to be. a second request by phone, as 

well as by this follow-up letter, to again seek that inf~rmation and 

file the apptop~iate financial statement, Form DC-74B. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOYJ Okay. This lead$ to another matter then. 
. - -

The two instruments ·you will accept by way of additional financial 

capability are either: (a) a line of credit, _ot (b)_, that particular 
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document, Form DC-748. You don't have the authority to accept other 

things -- that is what I am trying to get at . -- in terms of the waiver 

of the $1 85,000. You either had . to have one of those two things, or 
you couldn't move. Is that right? 

ASST. COMMlSSIONER FREIDENRICH: T1:lat i.s.exactly right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Then he really was able to take advantage 

.of the fact that you are limited in terms of what_ you can accept. Is 

that a fait assessment of the situation? lf he didn't supply you with 

either one of those things, he was basit~lly off the hook. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Well,- his bid, under the 

regulations, was considered non-responsive and it was not a- bid. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. That is really what. he wanted 

because he had told you in advance, "Hey, I left $375; 000 out of my 

bid," and he didn't really have a way to change his bid to allow him to 

put the $375,000 in. So he sure as heck didn't want to have to go in 

there and do it for $1.4 million, particularly when he left $900,000 on 

the table . up to the next bidder. I don't know_ whether he knew about 

the 1 imitation as far as what you could accept, but he certainly 

planned to his best advantage because he didn't provide you·with either 

of the things you could have used. He simply gave you a statement that 

things were a little better on his other jobs, and therefore let him do 

it. Yo8 couldn't do it. I think he really managed to take advantage 

. of the situation, much to the $900,000 detriment of the taxpayers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: You know, if anything comes out of this 

at all, Tom and Mr. Chairman, I think we have to, or someone has to, 

check into how to keep people like this from getting up, if they have 
to sacrifice 20% of their bond, or some such thing, if they make a bid 

and they refuse to come back with additional collateral, or---

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well, what concerns me is, we got stuck 

with a.$900,000 higher tab by virtue of~ (a) his mistake, and (b), his 

ability to not suffer from that mistake because he was able to use 

departmental regulations to his advantage. 

So the issue for me is, how do we stop this from happening 

again because, "Once burnt, twice shy," you know. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER:. A -bidder can. underbid. on the thing with 

the .thought in mind that, "Well, I don't have enough coverage here. ·.If 

the bid is right, I'll bring thecoverage up, but if it isn't right, 

·I'll just back off on the thing." 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: He is in a gre~t position.· It's win, win 

for him because he has all. the options. ' He is holdin_g ail· the cards. 

- ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: So, something has to be done to protect 

the State from that kind of action. 

· ASSEMBLYMAN- BRY-ANT: - Are there any other questions ·on ·this 

_point? 

. ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: The Commissioner has to appoint a task · 

force to figure out how to get around . that problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANt: 1 should welcome the Minority 'Leader, . 

·Mr •. Hardwick, who has joined us again. _ 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: May 1 ask Mr. Foy a question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Sureo 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Mro 

sQmeone else was apparently in error-..: 

Fay, if Pressure Concrete or· 

I don' t . know much about that 

business, -but they have made an_ error.- Under what circumstances is it 

in the public interest· to hold them to it if it would mean bankruptcy 

of.a company? Are you advocating such a law or regulation? If someone 
. . . . . . 

makes an error in bidding -- apparently a good-faith error; I mean, 

they· apparently sctew~d ,up their bid -- would you advocate a law? Is· . 

that what you'r~ saying, tha~ they ~hould be held to it regardless? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well, the law already exists that they can 

be held to it regardlesso · ·It's really a decision for--

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: It is my understanding that we have a 

procedure to deal with those ki'nds of questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: _--the policymakers. That is already a 

law. They could .have been held to it under the set of circumstances,· 

if you-really-wanted to go to it. The problem here is-- and I think, 

unfortunately, this is the worst · "Catch-22" situation I have seen ---

the extraordinary time considerations. If they said, "Okay, we are. 

going to hold you to it," . and this guy said, "Fine.. I am going 

bankrupt,'' or ·whatever, "litigate," _where are we? Nothing would be 



achieved in the sense of holding him to it, other than ultimately we 

·probably would have gotten the $900,000 difference through either 

liquidated damages or the Attorney General's litigation in suing the 

company, assuming that bankruptcy was not his· response. 

You know, if I were his lawyer I would say, "Hey, take· a 

. salvage, go bankrupt." The Department would· be beat and he would be 

none the worse for wear. 

That is already the law; what you're saying is already the 

law. The Department seriously could have decided, "Look, we don't care 

about the mistake~ We're saying you're in there." Then it would have 

to be litigated as to whether their lateral mistake was so obvious that 

the Department was acting irresponsibly by forcing them to go forward 

with a contract Which they knew was impossible tti perform. That is a 

serious question here. You know, I am not going to second-guess the 

Department and say what they did wasn't appropriate. They were trying 

to get the job done. It's just-- I think the real consideration is 

that the ne?<t bidder was so much higher. Even with the $375,000 

mistake -- okay? -- it was still $525,000 cheaper than the next bidder. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: And looking at where they said they made 

the mistake and what the Department estimates, they would be 

hard-pressed. The Department estimate was $11.00 per square yard, and 

theirs was $9.00. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I hate to tell you that I think, 

unfortunately, the Department engineer may have made a mistake, beca~se 

the Department engineer's number for that unit price and Pressure 

Concrete's number are very close. Alf of the other bidders are three 

times as much, and they are all very close to each other. So I think 

they had the tight nllllber in there. They probably had more realistic 

bids, as far as that goes. The Department had an $11.00 estimate per 

· cubic yard; Pressure Concrete bid $9.00 per cubic yard. I think 

Schiavone was $27.00, the. other guy was $28.00, and the other guy was 

$29.50. So they seem to be the right numbers for that particular unit. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Can we get back ·. to the point, Mr. 

Chairman, of why the bids w.ere not dumped when they were opened and 

found-- If I am not mistaken, you have to have just cause and reason 
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for dropping --·.·for canceling out the bid. You just can't· drop them 

without a reason, and reason or not, we are dropping t.hese becaus.e the 

low bidder. forgot to put $375 ,ooo into his bid. In view .of the fact 

that the other three bidders were pretty much in the ball park, I think 

we would subject ourselves then to possible. ·litigation on the part of 

· Schiavone. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask the question.because I don't 

have the specifications. · The specifications would have told m,e that• 

You can have language whe~e you reserve the right to reject all bids, 

and that is regardless of whether they are low bids or not• 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Even this-- I have to go back-­

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Do these specifications require that? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: I believe there is the right 

to reject all bids in the contract. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: l f that is the case in · the 

specifications, then it doesn't matter whether they are low or not, and 

you don't have to worry about . being sued if you reserve the right. 

Case law is very, very specific on that.point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: The only reason I am saying this is, 

getting back to the municipal level and coming up with something like 

this, it has happened where bids were. rejected, and the s~cond low 

·bidder made a case out of it. 'If I . am not mistaken, the ruling on it 

was that unless you have a justifiable reason for throwing them .all 

. out, whatever that mj.ght be, you . just can't reject the bid because of 

someone's fa:vorite, it could be, who didn't come in right in the bid. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I understand that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Even though you state in your contract 

that you have the right to do that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: But it has been upheld. ·When you have a 

$900,000 difference in bids, that is a wide difference. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: But what about the fact that the State 

estimated $1.9 million on this, and these bids are coming in at $2 .1. 

That is in the ball park. I mean, I think yo~ would be hard-pres~ed to 

prove that there was some reason other than the low bidder being dumped 

here -~ you know, dumping the whole bid because the low bidder didn't 
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come in right. Now you can be accused by the others saying, "Well, 

they're playing favorites here. They want this man to put this thing 

in. He puts the $375,000 in and he's still low bid." If you put the 

bids back out again, everyone knows what everyone else's bid is. They 

could come· in high; depending on how hungry the market is, ·they could 

come in higher. 

ASSEt-tiL YMAN BRYANT: My understanding of why the Department 

continued with the bid was, they wanted to get it done. I assume if 

they weren't going to do it until spring, they probably would have 

re~bid the whole thing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Taking their chances on it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT1 Taking their chances on re-bidding the 

whole thing to see what kind of numbers they might come up with. 

Because of the emergency of the situation, they are t~·ying to get it 

done by November 26, so it was important to go to the second lowest 

bidder. That is my understanding of the Department's posit-ion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I think it is important to note also, 

W~yne, that in the letter of August 5, signed ·by Falcone, we 

inadvertently. omitted the following required work from Bid Item /172. 

It included furnishing and installing angle irons, complete with 

expansion anchors, and this is what we have had the problem with. This 

is why the_ job wasn't getting done for that particular item. 

So, even if this man had gotten a contract, we would probably 

have had the same problem as far as the delay in getting this job done 

was concerned. 

ASSEMBLYMAN-FOY: My question then for the Department is, do 

you contemplate establishing a procedure so that someone who has caused 

all of these problems-- For example, there were literally dozens, if 

not a hundred, man:..hours involved in having to go through all of this. 

I mean, it was time and expense for the Department to have to make all 

of these adjustments in the process, and this guy gets off scot-free, 

with no penalty. He is able to take advantage of what is apparently a 

loophole. This really should not happen again. Someone should not be 

able to have it both ways, so to speak, which he did. Theoretically, 

he was in a posit ion, if he wanted to be in a posit ion, to say, "Okay, 
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I will, come up with the extra money, 11 because really,-. i.f he had a- $6 

miilion capacity, he could go to his bank and say,· "I need. you to up. 

·my.line $185,000 for me to get this $1.4 million contract,"- if he· 

. really wanted the contract. _. Then_ you_ would have :been ailtisfied. _If he 

had __ the additional line of .credit, you waul~ ·.have been obliged to. give 

.it t·o_him if he really wanted it. He didn.'t really want it, so he was 

- able to say, "Well, sorry; I'm doing a lot better, . but no line of 

credit, . no Farm FC-26," or whatever it is. 

So, he took advantage of it, ·and yov are really not. in a 

position, under · your .. exiatir19 authority, to impose any kind of 

penalties fat _the inconvenience he caused, _for the expense he caused 

the Department, or for the delay that was caused with respect to the 

project~. 1 t is a remediless situ at ion from the point of view ·of the 

State and th~ taxpayers. My strong. advice · would be· to promulgate 

a regulation so that this does not happen. again. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I agree. with you;. Mr~ Foy. · This is 

certain! y a unique circumstance. _ I think yol,J are . rat>solutely right~ I 

think your · suggestion of what · happened is accurate, and we should 

_.revisit this issue to see_ if there is some remedy we can come up with 

that would prevent ._it from happening in the future. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Then, to add insult to injury, to compound 

the problem from a lot of perspectives, because_ of;_ shall we say, the 

_ high· profile of the next lowest bidder--. I mean, if the next· lowest 

. _ bidd~r· had been Joe Smith--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Or Tom Foy~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: --or Tom F oy, it wouldn't have been quite 

as glaring :a situation. Unfortunately, the next lowest bidder has 

·othet problems with which we have some ·concern, which makes it even 

·more of a situation that causes questions to _be raised, you know, 

through· no one's fault, but that is just a fact of life. He was in 

second ·place, moved up. to -·first place, and there .were ·a lot of 

questioris involved with respect to thrat. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT:· Does anyone have any other .comments with 

re~pect to the first bidder? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well, one question. Do ~e need a law, or 

are you going to-- I don't want to pass any more bills if we don't 

have to. Are you going to do something about this? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Let us look at the issue and~-

. ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: . To see if you have regulatory authoril: y and 

to do something. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: --we will get back to youo 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: May we request that you get back to us 

in 30 days or 60 days? Is that pressuring, or what do you need? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I think 60 days would be appropriate, 

Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEiv1BL YMAN BRYANT: All right. In 60 days you will give us 

your opinion one way or the other. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Will do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: May I sign as cosponsor? Are you 

sponsoring-- It depends on what happens on November 5. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: We are really not looking to go into a 

law. I think what we are trying to say fs, it would be much better if 

they could do it by regulation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I think if you were able to say in your bid 
documents or in your contracts that there would be a penalty for a bid 

in which a unilateral mistake exists -- where the Department would have 

to incur extra expense .and things like that-- You could make treble 

damages, three times the estimated departmental cost. If it cost you 

$10,000, it would cost them $30,000 in their forfeiture. I think you 

have the authority to do something like that; you would just have to 

have your legal staff develop an appropriate instrument or mechanism. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Mr. Chairman, I do have a 

copy of the standard specifications that gov~rn all of our contracts. 

In response to your question about liquidated damages, for contracts 

that are between $1 million and $2 million, the liquidated damages are 

$300.00 a day. For contracts which are between $2 mill ion and $S 

million, the liquidated damages are $450.00 a day. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: What triggers the liquidated damages? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Pardon me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: What triggers the liquidated damages? 



ASST. COMMISSIONER F"REIDENRICH: The failure to complete the 

project within the adjusted completion date~ 1 say "adjusted" because 

there is an original completion date, and then there is a whole series 

of things. that could happen which, under the specifications, permit 
extensions of time. . So, it is the original completion date, . plus any 

extensions of time which develop an adjusted completion_ date.- Failure · 

to complete the ·work by that adjusted completion d~te- trigger$ the 
liquidated damages. 

dates? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: How do we arrive at adjusted completion 

ASST. COMMISSlONER EREIDENRICH: Well, there are-- _ 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I'm asking, whomakes the determination? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Pardon? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Who makes the determination? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER F"REIDENRICH:- The determination is made by 
our construction supervision staff. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: The Department tnakes.the determination? 
ASST. COMMISSIONER- FREIDENRICH: Yes. That is not to say 

that if the contractot believes he has a right to an extension o~time 

· and the Department does not agree, that he does not have further remedy 

to pursue that through the claims procedure • 

. · ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Is there any other information you would 

like to provide on the first issue? (negative response) Does anyone 

on the panel have a question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I have one more question._ One thing I 

failed to ask you to provide information about is,. in the course of a 
year, how many-contracts end up in litigation regarding issues such .as, 
you know, requests for extensions of time that are' denied, or things 

like that? Is there much litigation regarding this? 

ASST •. COMMISSIONER F"REIDENRICH: There are contractor claims 

we are involved in periodically. I am unable to tell you exactly how. 

many.. Sometimes the ·litigation starts, and then our attorneys and the 

attorneys for - the litigant work with · it and reach a settlement. 

Sometimes it goes all the way to the ~nd. Then if either party isn't 

satisfied, they seek further remedy in a higher court. So, you know, 
- . 

there is something going on--
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: All right. But i~~ terms of 100 contracts 

_let in the course of a year, what percentage would you say -- 5%, 10% 

-- are troublesome in that sense? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: My guess would be it is a 

very low percentage, Assemblyman. _ I hesitate to try tp guess just what 

it is. 

ASSEt-BLYMAN MILLER: Mr. Chairman, before we leave this stage 

of it, are we satisfied, as a Committee, that the. actions taken by <DOT 

up to this pa.rticular . pofnt in awarding this contract, were do~e, 
. . . 

without question, according to rules· and regulations, and that there is 

no fault here on anyone's part? What I'm saying is~-

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I wasn't trying to place fault. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: No, no, I am ~ot saying that, Tom. I'm 

just saying I would like to· clean up this phase of it before we get to 

the next phase of it. Personally, I am sati$fied ~that--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I am s·atisfied that the . .Commissioner has 

been r~sponsive to our inquiry, but .·I am not satisfied that the 

Department had sufficient protection in place to prevent this kind of 

thing from occurr in9. I think that is--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Well, we've asked for that. Then again, 

as the Commissioner stated, this is a very unique situation. It has 
3 

probably never happened before. What I'm saying is, up to this 

particular point, there is a $135,000 difference. I'm satisfied :that 

they did not have the discretionary power to do anything about that. 

I'm satisfied that the low bidder did not come in with the necess.ary 

paperwork to allow them to consider the low bidder, so I am satisfied 

that the bid was handled in a proper fashion at this particular point. 

Now, if there is something else from this point on that we 

haven't gone into yet-- Buti up until this point, is ~nyone 

dissatisfied with the behavior or the actions of DOT? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me explain this. Since the Deputy 

Attorney General cannot be present because the _request didn't go to the 

Attorney General, I am not satisfied at this point. I am not s~tisfied 

because the regulations say you cannot make inquiries. 

anything in the regulations which prohibits that. 

23: 

I don't see 



ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I don't know. Do you have something in 

the regulation th;;at would prohibit you from using your discretion in 

allowing_the $135,000 to stand'aside; or set aside, to overlook it and 

go along with it because you made a phone call? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT : It was no~ : a phone call. · I 'm saying 

he ·asked it from the particular indivJdu$1_~ . -There ·is __ nothing· in the 

regulation which prohibits .the Depa.rtment from asking .. t~e actual public . 

contractor for information. 
. . 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Well,· I think. he has. asked that, hasn't 

he? He has asked the concrete out fit to furnish that, and they· said, 

ih effect' that they wouldn't do it •. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT:. Let me give ·you an example. If, in 

fact, one· of their contracts was-- I am a solicitor, and this is 

public record. ··If the Department called and asked us, between August 5 

-- whenever the· bids we~e taken ~- and August 12, "Have you made any 

pay-downs on that contract?" we would have provided that information in 

writing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: . · But they· asJ<ed--

ASSEMBL YMAN BRYANT: No,. they . asked · to fund the · contract, 

saying, "We have infor·mat ion in our possession as the Depa~tment of 

Transportation.'' ... There is no~hing ·in the regulation which prohib~ts 

·.them from asking the actual per$ons with whom they are doing busines$ 

for ·information;· especially a· public contractor. The biggest part of 

this public coril~att was the Ne~ Yor~/New Jer~ey Pott Authority. 

ASSE:MBL YMAN MILLER: Then let's ask· them that. Do you have 

that right? Do you have the tight by regulati6n~ or otherwise, to gti 

.. to the New York/New Jersey Port Authority . and ._say, "How does· Mr. 

· · Contract X -deal? How far down is he on his commitment? How much has 

·he been relieved of ~is bonding?" Do you have the· right to do that and 

to accept th~t--.to accept whatever you find out as a basis for givj.ng 

the man the contract, even. though he is $135',000 short? 

·ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: We certainly can ask any 

public_ agency for any information we seek. There is· good cooperation 

amongst the agencies. To the best of my knowledge, we did exactly what 

.our regulations require. I think, ·as has been pointed out here · on 
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several occasions, what occurred in this particular situation was a 

unique occurrence. Based on that unique occurrence, the Commissioner 

has just indicated that he will have all of our regulations examined to 

see what we need to do to preclude such a situation from occurring 

again. ·With . that direction from the Commi~sioner, we will reexamine 

it, and we will talk to our counsel. 

ASSEtiBLYMAN M_ILLER: That is not _what I am driving at, Jack. 

What I am driving. at is this: Let's take this case. You went to the 

Authority and you said, "How does this contractor stand? He has done 

. $1 million worth of work on his $2 million commitment." Now, you know 

this; you have been told this. Does that give you the authority then 

to come back to the contractor and say, "We are going to award this to 

you because even though you didn't give us this information, you do 

have enough residual. You didn't give us this information; we found 

this out from the Port Authority." Now, you are going to award this, 

even though the~ didn't give it to you. Do you have the authority to 

by-pass the regulations ·because they didn't put it in black and white 

but you got it from someone else? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Not in my opinion, 

Assemblyman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Okay, that's what I'm saying. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY:. I'm operating under the . assumption that 

there were only two instrLments that would satisfy your request for 

financial capabilities. Is that correct? One was the additional line 

of credit, which is an actual commercial instrument. The second was 

the completion of a form which you would review and then either accept 

or reject. Those are the only two things that you could have done, as 

I understand it. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I think that is what the . representation 

was. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Under the present regulations, it is my 

understanding, Assemblyman Fay, that it is incumbent upon the 

contractor to satisfy us, and not some other public body they may b·e--

25 



. ASSEMBLYMAN · fOY: Right. He ··-is only allowed · to use two · 

things to satisfy you:· a line of credit, which comes from a bank, or a 

lender, or what have you, or completing the f~rm and having this form 

satisfy someone who review$ it in the Department. 

The one concern I have is, under. normal circUmstances -- I 

acknowledge that this is an abnormal ·situation .;..;... wouldn't there have 

been an action on the part of the Department to move against his bid 

bond if he failed to execute his contract? 

ASST o COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: I think here again· we have 

had situations in the past where contractors, after they heve submitted 
. . . . 

a bid~ have directed our attention to the fact , that they · mape an 

error. Whe·n that happens, we have a hearing to determine the nature of 

that error and,· with advice of counsel, there have been situations 

where based on the nature of the error,. we have said; · "Yes, it would be 

unconscionable to try to have the contractor perform the work of the 

contract on the basis of that error o" There have been other c·ases. 

I believe I mentioned there is one under review· by a court right now, 

where after we· had the hearing, we determined that the contractor 

· shouid not be relieved of his obligation to perform. We so advised 

him, and he has appealed that to a court. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Do you then pr-oceed against his bond when 

you say, · "Okay, you are supposed to execute· the contract by thus and 

su.ch a · date o We do not accept- your reasoning · as to the apparent 

unilateral· mistake.. It is insufficient; you must proceed." Do you 

then move against his bid bond? 

·ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: We would. Of course, while 

it is before a court of proper jurisdiction, you know--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: There is a stay on that. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: Yes • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN ·MILLER: . · Then what ·we are sayin·g here is, as long 

as those are the only two documents, the only two ways they can accept 

the bid, · then there .lsn' t anything else that I see· here, up · to this 

particular point~ that they can do to change the situatioh around in 

making this award. All· I am saying to you is--
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well-, I think you are· correct. That is the 

. representation. . There are only two thingf?: t·hey could accept. He 

_ wouldn't give t~em either. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: All I'm saying is--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You two agree, but I disagree until I 

can talk to the Attorney General. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: You're the Chairman and you control it, 

so we have to agree. Okay, fine. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No, I am not saying you have to agree. 

I 1m saying you can disagree. But you are in a gray area where you have 

_ a person who does not want the contract. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I don't see any gray area • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT:. The reason I say ... a gray area is because 

they did submit some information. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: It's black and \tthite. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No, no, you hav~ __ >:the information before 

you. They submit it to all the people with wbom _ they have contracts. 

That is how you learn their rating and stuff. - They also submitted that 

they had reduced it. I 'm saying, and I don't know what . the Attorney 

General would say-- The· Attorney General, looking at that, could tel~ 

me that we have the right to allow those places with public contracts 

to find out whether, in fact, their representation that they reduced it 

is correct, and to hold them into our contract. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I think we still need to talk to the 

Attorney General. 

ASSEMBLYMAN- BRYANT: There is not a regulation that says you 

cannot do that. So, it is a very gray area. That is why I say I am 

not convinced. I'm not saying it is the Department; I'm saying their 

representation-- Now you don't know whether or not you want to hold a 

person in. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Let's take it a step further. Let's 

assume _ they have the authority to do it, tikay, or they make an 

exception in this case and do it because of the difference. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Because of the circumstances of what is 

involved. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Okay,- let's say they do this, and all of 

a sudden they find that the out fit goes bankrupt or some other - ~uch -

thing. -Then, is the investigation going to be, "Why did. we· award this 

-thing?" when you are going contrary t_o the practice of what we have 

heen doing all these years, and you made one exception?-· I don't care 

'what the Attorney· General· says as- to what they have. These are· the 

rules. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You would end up having the performance 

bonds and those ·things to protect the .Department? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: - Sure. It would still be, "Why did you 

do it? They went bankrupt."· Now _you have to go back_ oot to· bid to 

complete_ the thing, and it will probably cost you more tnan your bond 

coverage because they know they~ve got you, that you are going to pick 

up someone else's work. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You're asking.me to be satisfied when I 

don't have certain information. What you don't understand is, I won't 

be satisfied until I explore that with the Attorney General's office. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Well, lots of luck. 

- ASSEMBLYMAN FOY:- The other curiosity here is, you· know, of 

all the things a guy leaves out of his bid, the thing that is causing -

the delay now is the anchors. That begs the question for us. If the 

guy had had it in, would he even have been able to obtain- this material­

in order to complete the job on time, or would the Department then have 

given him an extended completion date because he couldn't get_ it? So, 

you know, it's a mess. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Are there any further quest ,ions on this 

first particular point? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I'm satisfied to close this part of it, 

but go ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: As far as the Department goes, I am, but I 

would still like to talk to the Attorn~y General. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Okay. Going into the second part now, 

we awarded the contract, through the procedures -- we have - already 

gotten to that point ~~- to Schiavone, the second lowest bidder. Maybe 

the Conmissioner can tell me how Schiavone became the bidder and what 
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process was followed in. terms of what I understand ·was a proposed_ 

·suspension. It is important for the Committee to understand the whole 

process. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: If I understand the question, Mr. 

Chairman, you would like to know how they became-a bidder--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . Yes. At _some point· in time, there was 

a--

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: --on the speci fie contract, or would 

you like to know the more generic- question of why they contini,Jed to 

bid? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: There was a proposed suspension by your 

predecessor. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Okay. What -I want to know is, what is a 

"proposed suspension"? Maybe you better start out with the basics. 

- COMMISSIONER BODMAN: A proposed suspension is just what its 

name implies in the King's English. It is a suspension that is, in. 

fact, proposed. The Commissioner of DOT, in my understanding of the 

powers of that office, has the right and authority to immediately· 

suspend any contractor or proposed bidder solely and only on an 

indictment. Clearly, I believe Mr. Sheridan had that very authority to 

immediately suspend this contractor, based upon the indictment that was 

let by the New York authorities on September 24, 1984~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN _·BRYANT: Let me ask a quest ion because everyone_ 

is getting technical with regulations. In the regulations, as I review 

them, there is no such thing as a proposed suspension. There is either 
suspension or not. Maybe you can identify where the proposed 

suspension is in the regulations, since we don't want to go by the 

letter of what--

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I am familiar with the regulations, and 

I am familiar with certain court cases that, in so many words -- and I 

am not an attorney -- said that the opportunity should be available for 

a contractor who is proposed to be--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: 1 think the court cases say ·that the 

person who has been suspended must have an opportunity to be reviewed. 
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What I ·ani trying to get at _first, since we are _all dealing with 

the foundation of regulations·, is, where __ in the regulations. is. there . 

. autt"lority for< proposed suspenSion as opposed to suspension? It is my 

vnders~anding ~- and I. read the .. regulations -~ that t~e regulations do 

:not talk·· abolJt J3Uspension. Maybe someone can te,ll me where _ the -

proposed suspension is . in .· the_ regulations, as opposed to an actual " 

suspens-ion o 

. COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I don,- t know where that authority is, 

- Mr • Chairman. 1 (Jr\Cier stand that Mr • Sheridan, at the t itne, m~de the 

decision to· issue _this· proposed _suspension,. ahd invite ~he contractor 

to come in and "explain away the criminal charges," which I believe.is 
- -

consistent. with appropriate caaela~. !.believe he did so based on the 

advice· oJ counsel at- th~ time. I should 're[Jiind the Committee that I 

_ was .not the Commissioner, and I did not. make that decision~ 
ASSEMBLYMAN· BRYANT: . • Okay. Since tt'lere is a proposed 

suspension, I have to get batk to understanding that in my mind. If it 

is not in the regulations, then someone needs to explain to me what- it 

·- is• 
.COMMISSIONER BODMAN: What -- I'm sorry? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: What is a proposed suspension? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Well, I can certainly read you a-letter 

.from Mr. Sheridan,- which perhaps, ·in this. instance, would demonstrate 
. . r 

tnat. It was dated October 18_, 1984, _ and was addressed to Mr. 

Joseph D.i.Carolis, whc{ _1 believe is President of Schiavone Construction. 

Company.- It - says: "Please take- notice that there . has been a 

development subsequent to the· clas_si fication of Schiavone Construction 

Company to bid. on New Jersey Department of Transportation projects, 

· namely, the indictment of Schiavone Construction Company and a number 

·of its. officers and employees in :the Supreme Court of the State of New 

York, Indictment No. ·3571-4548284. 
- . . . 

The· indictment charges Schiavone 

Construction Company and the named individuals, with one count of grand 

larceny in the second degree, 125 counts of falsifying business records 

in the first degree, and -.11 counts· of offering a false instrument for 

filing -in the first. degree. -

30 



"This development may affect the responsibility of Schiavone 
Construction Company to do business with the State of Ne~ Jersey. 

Accordingly, you are hereby notified that I 8in considering the 

_ suspension of the cla~sification of Schiavone Construction Company, in 

_ ~cordance with N.J. A. C. 16:65-8.1, et seq.. Said suspension may also 

be applied to the classification of any -affiliates of Schiavone 

Construction Company." 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Would you please read that regulation 
again? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: It's N.J.A.C. 16:65-8.1. 

"You are_ also advised that the suspension I am considering 

may apply to bidding on all DOT and State Aid contractst and may.also 

preclude Schiavone from serving as a subcontractor and from supplying 
Q -

materials for NJDOT and State Aid projects, pending the completion of 

the legal proceedings in the indictment. 

~ "You are further notified that an opportunity for a hearing 

or to supply a written explanation by way of affidavits and. supporting 

documents, will be gi'anted, provided, however, that a request for a.n 

opportunity to be heard is made _ in writing within 10 days of the 

receipt thereof.'' 
Again, I am reminding the Commit tee that I was not 

Commissioner at the time that such a hearing, i,n fact, took place. I 

believe they responded. A similar letter, by the way, was sent to Mr. 

DiCarolis by Mr. Premo, Executive Director of New Jersey Transit. Mr. 

Premo's letter, dated October 18, 1984, said essentially the same 

thing. On October 24, 1984, a Mr~ Geiser replied on Schiavone's behalf 

to both DOT and NJT, essentially requesting a hearing. I understand a 

hearing took place on November 15 for both DOT and NJT, and on November 

27 '- a request for a hearing in a contested matter was filed with the 

Office of Administrative Law by Mr. Sheridan. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: It is my understanding that under this 

proposed-- They were not suspended then? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: They were not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: They were proposed for suspension? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That's correct. 



ASSEt43LYMAN BRYANT: You're.telling me at this point in time 

that N.J.A.C. 16:65-8.1~-

COMMISSlONER BODMAN: I . was reading to you from Mr. 

Sheridan's letter to Mr. DiCarolis. That is the statute he made· 

reference to in his letter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT; . I guess. my· question is for ··the 

Department, because the Department is; from my understanding of the 
' . . . - . 

first part of this ·hearing,· the strict constructionist in . terms of· 

regulations. Is the proposed suspension in the regulations, or are 

people suspended under that? ·I· am trying to figure out how ·you trigger 

a hearing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: He just answered that • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: By that statute. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let's take a three-minute break •. 

(RECESS)·· 

AFTER RECESS 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Everyone is back and we are teady to 

proceed. We. pulled out the regulations; they were codified, I guess, 

in 16:44. 

·ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: ·Is that the year or the citation? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That's the citation, 16:44-8 on. 

I recognize, Commissioner, that you were not there at the 

time·, but .I guess there were Department people there at the time. In 

reviewing the regulations for suspension, there is no proposed 

.suspension. There is suspension; then.you have 10 days to do whatever 

you t:lave to do according to the procedures under 16:44-8.7. I guess 

. my. · only inquiry is-- We belabor the· fact that we follow · the 

regulations· to a "T," but I don't understand how we do a proposed 

suspension. First, there is the actual suspension, and then they allow 

a hearin9 according to the regulations.· When does the Department 

choose to follow the regulations, and when does the Department decide 

it is going to make a deviation? 
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COMMISSIONER BODMAN: -Well, _I can ·orgy say that it is my 

understanding, Mr. Chair-man, that the then Commissioner, Mr. Sheridan, 

·consulted with the appropriate Deputy Attorneys G~neral who represent 

the Department, and was advised 

proper and just way to _ proceed. 

what my departmental people have 

1984. 

that this proposed _ suspension was a 

Again, I ,.as not there , -but that is 

told me took pJ;ace back _in October, 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Okay. So we ask-: the Attorney General 

when we want to do one thing. But _my question is in terms of why we 

didn't ask the Attorney General why we had the ability, possibly the 

regulations didn't preclude us, and getting certain information-- It 

seems to me we selectively ask the Attorney_ General to give us 

information. The procedure is clear. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: We selectively ask--

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Well, you alwayS do that, Assemblyman 

Bryant. You don't ask him every time you want to move your little 

finger. You ask when you think you need guidance. There is nothing 

unusual about that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: It is my understanding from the 

Department that the Attorney General says these regulations do not have 

to be complied with. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: No, he is not saying that; come on, 

Wayne. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I'm asking the question because I don't 

know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: 1 have a more germane question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Have you read the regulation, Mr. 

Bryant? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: On suspension, that is what we are 

talking about, yes, I have. There is a difference between--

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Because it refers to the fact that the 

discretion of the Commissioner of Transportation shall be rendered in 

the best interest of the State. How did they deviate from· the 

regulation? I don't follow you. 
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ASSEMB~ YMAN BRYANT~ Because the regulatidn requires that you 

suspend and then you give 10 days. What he is telling me~~ The 

present Commissioner is saying that the form~r Commissioner never 

suspended them; therefore, tt\ey . were allowed to c9ntinue to do work. 

So, it never triggered_ the_ 10 days, becau~e the r~gulat~ion requires 

suspens~on prior to-one having a hearing.-

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: He didn't say that. He p,r.oposed and 

-ga~e. 10 ·days. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Before gathering the information to 

determine -whether·or not he should su~pend? 

ASSEMBLYMAN- BRYANT: That is what the r~gulations re~d at 
. . . . 

16:44 ... 8. 7 o He can suspend_ on the basis of an indictment, or whab~ver o 

There-are nunerous--

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: But it also says -- _16:44-8.6 _ -- that 

it should· be made _at the discretion _ of the .Commissioner of 

. Transportation, and of the Attorney General,.· and shall be rendered iri 

the best interest of the st~te. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I am not disagreeing. I am not saying 

he should _have suspended. The issue is not whether he should have 

suspended or not. 

proposed suspension. 

and then trigget--

\-Jhat I-'m . saying is, there ·is no regulation. for_ ,a 

Either you take affitmati ve action to suspend, 

ASSEMBL YMAN. HARDWICK: . Now, ~ait a minut~. It says,-

"Suspension should not be based upon a unsupported accusation·, but upon· 

adequate eviderce. that cause_ exists or· upon evidence adequate to create 

a reasonable suspicion that cause exists." How do you know ... - if you 

don't conduct _a hearing,- or a due process _of one kind or another 

whether or _ not the best interest of · the s·tate is being served by 

suspending a bi~det? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Because in one of the-..; Let me se_e. 

An indictment in itself is grounds for suspension under . the 

·regulations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Grounds, but at the- discretion of the 

Commissioner-of Transportation. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Procedurally, you don't have a hearing 

·unless you have a suspension. What I am saying is, there is no" 

proposed suspension in the regulations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Did you criticize the hearing at that 

. time? If it was wrong, did you criticize" the, previous Commissioner at 

that time? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, what happened was, we asked for a 

letter, through Legislative Services, as to how the person got to.that 

point, and we never rec~ived it. So, I couldn't criticize. I didn't· 

know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Do you mean Commissioner Sheridan? At 

that time you asked for a letter? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: We asked for a letter explaining that, 

and we never got it. 

ASSE M6LYMAN HARDWICK: Commissioner Sheridan? You asked 

back at that time -- October, 1984? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I don't know whether we asked in 1984. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I don't know what the relevancy· of all of 

this is. What concerns me--

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: I agree, Mr. ~oy; !don't know what 

the relevancy is either. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I just want it on the record that ·there 

is no proposed suspension under the regulations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Wasn't the final line the same thing? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I · suggest that it was a legal 

interpretation. I believe the counsel to the Department provided that 

option to the then Commissioner. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That's right. What I would like to say is, 

I 'm certain the Department must have maintained a file on ·the whole 

issue of the proposed suspension of Schiavone Constructidn, the 

Administrative Law Judge's hearing, and the subsequent action by the 

Commissioners. I assume neither you nor Commissioner Sheridan acted 

independently of advice from the Attorney General's office, that you 

solicited and received advice as to how to act. If that advice was put 

in writing, which it should have been, rather than just making some 
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·.phone calls and someone saying, "Yes, go-·&head, Commissioner, do what 

you want," I assume there are some memos that confirm this transact.~ on 

and the advice to both Commissioner Sheridan and yourself. 

What I would like to have supplied by the Commi-ssioner is the 

record ·of this transaction in terms of ttte advice of the . Attorney 

General or his designate, the Deputy AttQrney Ge11era1. assigned. t~ the 

particular case. What I find troublesome is,. you know, it j.s another 

one of these left-hand/right-hand situations. Here we have the-Deputy 

Attorney General going in and arguing all about why Schiavone shoulc;l be 

suspended before the Administrative law Judge, and at the same time he· 

is obliged to provide advice as to how to proceed subsequent to that · 

decision being received. 

So I am really concerned abC?ut the activities of the Attorney 

General's office in relet ionship to the Department, what their advice 

was regarding this matter, and what . procedures they followed. You 

know, in a technical reading of this regulation, there is no such thing 

as a proposed suspension. . . You suspend, and the_n you give them the 

opportunity to have a hearing. So it is somewhat of an aberration. 

There may well be a basis for it somewhere else, in the ultimate 

discretionary authority of the Commissioner,·or there may be some other 

part of the administrative code that provides it. I just want to know 

who told John Sheridan to do it, and ·what. was the basis of ·their 

authority for telling him to do it. 

We can't seem to find it in· the existing regulation. l'rn 

sure there is a memo that covers it. If . you can provide that 
~ 

information, I think it will be useful. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: The Committee requested that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Mr. Chairman, whether the word 

"proposed" is in there or not, wasn't the final line the same? . Wasn't 

the final result the same? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Because of the unusual nature of· the 

situation-- I mean, if this is the orily time it has ever been done in 

the history of the Department, it would raise serious questions in my 

mind as to its propriety. Why are we doing it to this individual? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Let's make the assumption, Tom, that 

they ·left the word '.'proposed" out. You have been suspended and you 

have 10 days to answer. All right? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Within the 10 days, you send a letter 

that you want a he~ring. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Substitutively the·~;:1let effect is the same; 

there is no question about it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: That's right, ·:the same thing. So the 

word "proposed" doesn't mean a damned thing. 

"' ASSEM3LYMAN FOY: Well, it does if it is a deviation that was 

afforded only to this--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: What is the deviation? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: The fact that/:',,:there was a proposed 

suspension, not an actual suspension. -

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: The word "prop~~ed." 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Right; that is a concern to me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: The word "proposed-." At the end of the 

10· days if they had said the man was suspended, it would have been 

effective as of that particular point in time. If they had suspended 

the man first, and then had the hearing at the :.end of 10 days, if the 

man wasn't suspended, he would be back in. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: If they did that \lney would have been 

following the regulation that . has been followed-· and undeviated from 

throughout the history of the Department. Suddenly we have a situation 

in which the Commissioner takes an unusual action. He obviously had a 

basis for taking that action, and I want to know what the basis was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Mr •. Fay, .. ,.the basis is in the 

regulation, which simply says-- Let me read it· one more time; maybe 

you · don't have a copy of it: "The exist-ence of any cause for 

suspension shall not require that· a suspension be imposed, and a 

decision to suspend shall be made at the discretion of the Commissioner 

of Transportation, and of the Attorney General, and shall be rendered 

in the best interest of the State. Suspension shall not be based upon 

unsupported accusation, but upon adequate evidence that 6ause exists or 
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upon evidence adequate to create a reasonable ·suspicion that cause 

exists." 
' . 

It seems to me very clearly that Mr •. Sheridan said, "You 

know, I think. maybe we ought to suspend these people. Let's ha.ve a 

. hearing and find out •" Subsequently, as you know, it was turned over 

to the Administrative Law Judge· for a ruling. You have .. not yet giv~n 

· Conmissioner Bodman . a chance to say what happened and what directions 

·came back from the Administrative Law Judge. 1 think Mr. Sherid~n 
' 

acted very properly to gather the evidence and use his discretion to 

suspend the bidder should the evidence warrant suspending him, and he 

apparently turned it over -- and mayb~ Commissioner Bo~man will explain 

-- to the Administrative Law Judge to render a decision~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That's wonderful. I'm glad you-­

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: What could be more in keeping with the 

regulation? 

· ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I'm thrilled that·· you think the· 

Commissioner acted properly. I didn't say that he acted improperly. 

All I want to find out i~ who he got his legal advice from, and what 

that legal advice was. . What was the predicate for taking this .. 

different type of action? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: What's different? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: The fact that it was an unusual procedure 

proposed suspension. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: What's different? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: One word. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: The regulation does not provide for it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: It doesn't provide for it, and secondly,. 

theoretically-- . 

prohibit 

something 

to supply 

trying to 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: It doesn't prohibit.it. Where does it 

it? 

ASSEMBLYMAN 

to hide? Is 

this? 

ASSEMBLYMAN 

do. 

FOY: Let 

there any 

HARDWICK: 

me ask you a quest ion. Do you have 

reason you don't want the Commissioner 

Come on, Tom. We know what you are 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Seriously, is there·· any reason you don't 

want us to have these memos? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: This is one· of your three political 

hearings for the day. Of course not. You are harassing· the 

· Department. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Listen, I am not holding any hearings;· I am 

not the Chairman of any convnittee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Hold it, gentlemen. Gentlemen~.;.. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: 1 don't think the Commissioner is objecting 

to pro~iding that~ 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Mr. Chairman, I . ·will be happy to 

provide.;..-

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I don't think he needs you to protect him. 

COMMISSIONER BODMANi Mr •. Foy, please.. I will be happy to 

provide pertinent information·. I should say that during my time as 

Commissioner and my dealing with this issue, to my knowledge· -- and I 

will review my file -- I met with someone in the Attorney General's 

office, whose name escapes me at the moment, but a senior person .who 

served above the normal DAGs that represent our· Department, for the 

very simple reason that I was acting, in fact, in a judicial capacity, 

as I believe is envisioned by the statute. I don't believe I had· a 

written expression from that individual. I had a meeting with her and 

spoke of my concerns arid my desires on how to proceed with this matter 

once the Administrative Law Judge handed down his ruling. But I do not 

know off the top of my head what type of written documentation may be 

in the file. However, I will be happy to supply it to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: All right. Let me flesh out what the real 

distinction is so we can make this crystal clear. If there ·is a 

suspension order, notwithstanding the fact that a person appeals the 

order and says he wants a hearing, if the Commissioner suspends, it is 

my understanding that the person is then prohibited from bidding on 

State work. Is that right, Mr. Freidenrich? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: That is correct. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I believe that's true. 
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ASSE.MBL YMAN FOY: If there is a proposal to ·suspend, it · ~s 

. not a suspension, and all during the time that. that person is fleshing . · 

out- tht! reasons why he shouldn't be suspended under this proposed 

order, he can . then continue · to bid · on State work. That is the 
.. . 

fundamental difference about the word "propoSed•" It kept ·schie.vone in 
. . 

bUsiness fa~ a long time,. when he might have been-- .. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Sure, sp wh.a~? Wh~t i~ your point? 

·ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: · Well, you know, that is a highty irregular 

and unusual proc.edure. There must have been a basis for it • 

ASSEMBL.YMAN HARDWICK: What is: irregular about it? 

· ASSEMBLYMAN tOY: If Attorney Gene tal Kimmelman gave them 

some advice, I would 1 ike to know what it was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I. think the question is, did . they 

finish? . ·Were they doing any work at that partic.ular time?. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Sure. The Governor signed an award for a 

contract before the Turnpike Authority. He got a $758,000 contract. 

· ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK:· Propose~ suspension is presumably· the 

period of time between when the thought occurs. to you and when you do 

it. 1 mean, what is so mysterious .about it? 

'ASStMBL YMAN BRYANT: Not to belabor :the point, but we asked 

the ,Commissioner if-- Oh,. there· is a definite distinction because the 

regulation says if . you are suspended, then you have no rights. 

Suspension.does c~t off rights. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Yoo may suspend. 

ASStMBLYMAN . BRYANT: · Yes, it · says you may under certain 

·conditions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: You may. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: And what it basically does-- It ·is a 

·procedural issue, Mr. Hardwick. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: I understand what. you're saying.· 
. . 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: · A procedure saying that if you request a 

heating, you have to do certain things before you get that hearing • 
. . 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: . And the Commissioner chose to get his 

facts before he suspended at did not suspend. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: The regulations do not dip into that • 
.. But he ~ent to the Attorney General and I want to know what the 

Attorney General's opinion was, and how he got to that· point when the 

regulations do not provide it, just like when the tithers told me they 

couldn't do this because it wasn't in the re9ulations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: You are a real constructionist. Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I'm just -telling you-- You told me you 
were a constitutional constructionist on the other-- What I'm saying 

.is, what's good for the goose is good for the gander. In other words, 
if you do,· it on one side and you are going to be strictly a 

constructionist,_ you have to do it on the other side. If you are going 

to be consistent, be consistently consistent; if you are going to be 

inconsistent, be inconsistently inconsistent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: They were very consistent with the 

regulations both times. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: They were not, because the regulations 

do not provide for that opportunity. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: They don-'t prohibit it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: See, if every other contractor-­

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Do you agree with my other argument? 
· They d idn' t--

ASSEMBLYMAN-MILLER: It does allow discretion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Thank you. Let us now get through-- We 

have a proposed suspension, and the process that went on from there. I 

am going to ask you all to try not to stop the Commissioner. 

Commissioner, would. you like to give us something on that for about 
five minutes to get us through it? Then people can ask questions. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I' 11 try to give you the sequence of 

events, Mr. Chairman, as I understand them. A hearin~ apparently took 
place on November 15 with Mr. Sheridan and officials from the Schiavone 
Construction Company. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That was in 1984? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Excuse me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That was in 1984, just to keep the dates 

straight? 
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COr+1lSSIONER BODMAN: Yes, sir, 1984; November, 1984. On 

November 27, 1984, e request for. a hearing·· es . a contested matter was 

filed ·with the Office of Administrative Law by DOT. ln March and 

April, 1985, hearings were held before Administrative Law Judge --

.Miller, I believe his · name ·was. .On . July 2, the Office ·of 

Administrative Law issued its ruling, recoowending that Sc,iavotie not 

be forbidden to continue to bid. On ~ugust 20, ·I affirmed. that 

· decision --·August 20, 1985. 

That is a brief capsulization of the. sequence of events• 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Does anyone have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: .Sounds good to me. 
. . 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask a couple of questions to 

start out. The Attorney General represented the Department in the 

hearing. Can you tell me what his.position was on the heating? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: His position was that they should be 

suspended. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: On what basis? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I don't know, sir. I was not present 

· before those hearings. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT:. No one from your Department knows? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: 

indictment. in New York. 

Well, l'm sure it was based on the 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: And, the Administrative Law Judge came 

back and said what they should be allowed?· 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: And you agreed with that decision? 

CO~~ISSIONER BODMAN: I did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT.: On the basis on which the Administrative 

Law Judge did? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Yes, sir. I did take some exception in 

my statement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Could you tell me the foundation upon 

which the Administrative Law Judge rendered his decision? What was the 

foundation, or the facts, or the basis for the decision? 
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COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Well, there were a number of points 

leading from his ruling. I' 11 quote it, if I may: "As I have 

indi~ated above, the evidence adduced by Schiavone Construction at the 

inst~nt hearing is strongly indicative of a fair arm's length business 
! . • 

transaction of benefit to both contractor and subcontractor." 

I think the Committee ·should understand that the nature .. of 

the indictment, as I understand it, relates to whether or not Schiavone 

Construction Company properly dealt with it~ responsibilities with 

relation to a minority business enterprise goal -- with emphasis on the 

word "goal" -- that was set by the Transit Authority of New York at the 

time, and further that the ·question of whether equipment that was 

leased by Schiavone Construction Company to the subcontractor in 

question, one Joe Pell, was, in fact, an appropriate lease transaetion 

arrangement. Apparently what took place was that to meet its 10% goal, 

Schiavone Construction Company utilized the equipment rental as part 

and parcel of that transaction. That · is .my somewhat brief 

understanding. 

·The Administrative Law Judge dealt with the following issues: 

the equipment needed by Joe Pell to perform his subcontract was complex 

and not easily obtainable; Joe Pell did not own the necessary equipment. 
and could not readily obtain· it. from others; the terms of the lease 

agreement were fair and the rental charge was based on fair market 

value; the governmental policy guidelines and regulations from 1978 to 

the present time have encouraged prime contractors to assist M9Es in 
. . 

various ways, including.the leasing of equipment when necessary; and he 
cites various memorandums and so forth to back up that that be the 
Federal Highway Administration and other DOT position, and that New 

Jersey DOT recognizes the legality and priority·of leases of equipment 

to MBE subcontractors in offsetting rental paymen,ts. And it goes on to 

basically state, in so many words ..;_ I'm looking for the conclusion 

"I mention the above factor.s not to criticize New York authorities or 

to try to demonstrate any essential legal defects in the indictment, or 

to make a prediction as to the ultimate disposition of the charges. In 

my opinion, however, petitioner has succeeded in showing that: 1) the 

validity of the indictment is debatable; 2) the chances of a successful 
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·prosecution . are dubious; and 3), of t.h~ total 137 counts in the 

indictment, -all but one, larceny, ar·e essentially technical in nature . 

and do not manifest conduct which · is ~orally reprehensible or which 

strikes-at the heart of the bidding process. 

"In these re~pects, I believe t.he ·petitioner has met its 

· · t>urden of 'explaining away' the _crimin~l ch~rges made against it in the 

State of New York." Then, in so many words, i~ suggests ~hat this 

· decision be -- tha-t Schi~vone be permitt~d . to bid. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Okay. You say your ~ecision differed? 

Iri what_ resp~ct did it differ? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Excuse me? . 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: In . what respect. did you differ from 

the-~ -I know you ·came to the same conclusions, bl.lt what I am tryi~g to·· 

get at 1s, -he had one set of ·reasoning to reach his conclusion, and you 

had another set· of reasoning. Sometimes . people come to the · same 

conclusion, but the· conclusions ·are based on different facts or 

diff~r~n~ circumstances. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I should point .out that ·this document 

that w~s wr1t ten by the Admin1sttat i ve Law Judge is some 40~odd pages 

in length, Mr. Chairman, with any· number of references . to a 

considerable number of exhibits that wer.e attached at· one point. I 

believe the exhibits are somewhere in the range of 65. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: In making your decision-- - Well, first 

you can tell us how you differed, but you can tell me what you reviewed. 

to make your decision, too. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Excuse me, what I rev~ewed? 

_ ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: - Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I reviewed -the AdminiE?trative Law 

·Judge's decision. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That's all? 

COMMISSIONER .BODMAN: Yes; sir. Basically ~hat I: was 

concerned . about--. I_ rejected his reference to · _the economic · 
. . 

difficulti~s which may result from a temporary suspension. He -- Judge 

Parker, I. believe, is the name made reference to economic 

diffitulties ·that might well accrue to the Schiavone Constructicin 
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Company should it be suspended. I rejected that because I felt it was 
inappropriate. My primary concern, however, was attempting to just . 

reaffirm the position of DOT to, in fact, suspend these individuals, 

and I made reference to that in the first. page or so of this document. 

However, it is of great concern to me .that -the Administrative 

Law Judge, Judge Miller, in_ his decision, fails to direct sufficient 

attention to the need to maintain public confidence in the integrity of 

the bidding process. I went into some detail citing, after 

consultation with the Attorney General's office, some appropriate case 

law. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I guess that is what. is confusing. The 

Attorney General's office, on your behalf, argues strongly that based 

on the record they had from New York, Schiavone should not be allowed 

to bid. Now you're tel_ling me that the Attorney General's office is 

the one which then told you that they thought it was all right, that 

they failed to meet their burden? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: The Administrative Law Judge-­

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: The Administrative Law Judge gave an 

opinion, but he just said that he met with the Attorney General to form 

his opinion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: After the Administrative Law Judge 

handed.;..-

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I didn't say I met with the Attorney 

General himself. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, the Attorney General's office. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: When I spoke to the Attorney General's 
people, I told them I intended to affirm this decision and that I wa~ 

concerned about some of the conclusions that were made, which I just 

mentioned, particularly the economic harm issue. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Why were you concerned with that issue? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Excuse me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Why were you concerned with that issue? · 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Because I didn't think it was germane 

to the matter. The matter is public confidence in the bidding process, 

not whether or not Schiavone will or will not do well in an economic 

sense in the State of New Jersey. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Isn't it true that case :law .basically 

said that that is not a consideration to be taken into account? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: What is not a consideration, sir? I 

don't understand the qu~stioh. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . Case law in N~w Jersey. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Says? 

· ASSEMBLYMAN 'BRYANT: Court law ~ays that _ the bases ypon which 

the Administrative_ Law Judge made his decision were- erroneous because 
. . . 

one's economic well-being is not to be considered. 

CO_MMISSlONER BODMAN: Well, _ that was not_ the only point he 

made. -He·. quarreled with the indictment. He made reference to the fact 
. ' ' . . 

that ~- and I agteed with him -~ Schiavone, during ~ts first 25 ye~rs, 

was heavily involved in:public works contracts. It had been. awarded 73 

construction contracts totaling . $292 millio_n. and had performed them 

well. But for the New York_. indictment, Schiavone has not been 

indicted. ·In 1978, when Schiavone bid on the New York ·city Ttansit 
. . 

· project, the governmental. program to aio mino:rit y business enterprises 

was in its early stages. Much confusion existed. When bidding on the 

New York City Transit Authority project, Schiavone·agreed to a goal of 

10%,. and the· New York indictment stems from Schiavone's inclusion of 

$7.41 million of the-.rental value. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: What was the confusion? I looked at the 
. . 

· Administrative Law Judge's view and you also restated basically what he 

said, that there was confusion. Maybe someone can explain . what:. 

confusion there was_ in terms of minority bidding. 

COMMISSIONER BOOMAN: You might want to ask the Judge to come 

in anQ expl~in it to you further. His reasoning--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I'm asking you. 

_COMMISSIONER- BODMAN: My understanding, Mr. Chairman, was 

that according to lhis document from the Administrative Law Judge, Joe 

Pell was _ included on a. list of appropriate minority business 

enterprises that theTA issued.at the time, and that there were various 

dec_isions and regulations. which dea_lt ~ith the issue of-- There were 

umpteen regulations at the time . which dealt with the issue of whether 

or not the rental of that equipment could, in fact, properly be 
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included. There were ·numerous regulations that ·dealt with the issue 

·to, in effect, recommend -- let me put it that -way -- or strongly 

suggest, or, in fact, require, that contractors do what they could "to 

assist a MBE~" I believe the word "mentor" was used from time to time, 

and implicitly suggested that such .·leasing relationships be 

established, and that tAat would assist the MBE :to move forward• 

Again, I am not an. attorney. I would have to review that 

Judge's case to more specifically answer your question, but that is· my 

recollection. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Did you alsO review the indictment? 

· COt+1ISSIONER BODMAN: I did not, other th~;an the reference 

made to it in the Administrative Law Judge's decision where he 

capsulizes the indictment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You didn't thi-nk it was important to 

review the indictment as the final arbitratot)? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I thought that the findings of fact in 

the beginning of this document were sufficient, where he cites, on 

September 24, a true bill and goes through essentially a two-page 

capsulization of the indictment. 

ASStMBL YMAN BRYANT: But at the same-- Let me ask you a 

question. If those findings of fact, and you took those literally--

. In essence, my understanding from the regulation is that you are· the 

final arbitrator of fact; therefore, you review everything. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: And the indictment was out.. It seems 

strange to me that when it came to his finding of facts about hardship, 

that that was reviewed, but .yet the indictment wasn't reviewed. I 

mean, it shows that he made a clear error based on the law. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: You're certainly entitled to your 

opinion of what is strange . and what isn't strange. I felt that this 

was a legiti~ate review, that I was not an attorney, and that the 

reading of this New York indictment and the findin·gs ·of fact he set 

forth there clearly established a considerable understanding of the 

nature of those charges, and was sufficient for my purposes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Oh, I agree with YOlj that-you are not an 

attorney, and. yet you took great pains in yours to cite for us all of 

the appropriate cases Where--

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I did so with the benefit of counsel, 

sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT:·· - ... the Administrative Law Judge erred ·in 

terms of using financial standards. What I am saying is, when you read 

us thething and you found out, or someone told you-- State.attorneys, 

I guess, or someone in the Attorney General's office--· 

. COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: --that he made a clear error,. it would 

seem to me his whole report would then become suspect in terms of the 

foundations, as opposed~-

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Whose report, the Judge's? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: The Administrative Law Judge's .• 

ASSEMBLYMAN.MILLER: Let me ask you a question, Wayne. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Again, I am afraid I misunderstood 

you. Why would it become suspect? What is suspect about it? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANi: What is suspect about it is-- Your 

opinion basically says he has made an erroneous assumption that cannot 

·be substantiated by court law. 

COMMI 55 I ONER BODMAN: I never said that. I don't believe 

that is what I said at all. I believe I made reference to the fact 

that I wanted to emphasize that the integrity of the bidding process 

should be maintained·, and I made reference to the Trap Rock case in 

that regard. That does· not in any way undermine., in my view, the 

Administrative Law Judge's definition. I just don't believe he put 

· sufficient emphasis on that question; therefore, I chose to do so in my 

affirmation of his decision. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You're saying that in his opinion, where 

he said--

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: He was citing--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: --that the finahcial burden . of an 

individual should be taken into account in terms of--

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That was the one point that I disagreed 

with him on. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That is what Trap Rock basically says. 

Therefore, that means he was erroneous in terms of making that 

decision. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Well, you're reaching that conclusion; 

I'm not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: An Administrative Law Judge cannot 

overrule what has happened in either the Appellate Pi vision or the 

Supreme ·Court. If they say the standard is that you cannot consider 

financial hardship--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I thought you were talking case law. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: But because you had one paragraph, or 

whatever ,it was, that the Commissioner didn't agree with doesn't mean 

that the whole decision is necessarily to be thrown out the window. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I didn't say the whole decision. What I 

was getting to, and what my question basically is-- We dealt with one 

portion of his .decision and there were problems. I want· to know if I 

happen to look at the indictment-- I am asking the Commissioner why he 

didn't review the indictment, why he just took the Administrative Law 

Judge's facts, and if, in essence' basically what he tells me is 

gospel. In other words, his interpretation of the facts of the 

indictment, even though--

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Well, see, it comes to the very 

question, Mr. Chairman, as to why we asked the Administrative Law Judge 

to hear it in the first place. The fact is, I am not an attorney. The 

decision, in fact, was made to do so prior to my becoming 

Commissioner. I believe that he, being an Administrative Law Judge, 

was an impartial, qualified, prudent individual. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: He might not be an attorney either. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Well, the fact of the matter is, he was 

making a recommend at ion which was requested by the Department and I 

did, in fact, put good faith in his decision. I felt it was the 

appropriate thing to do because I did not spend three or four months 

listening t'o this testimony, nor would I feel 1 was qualified to do so. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . But you don't think,the major indictment 

upon which the suspension, dr proposed suspension was based is a 

necessary document- to review? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I felt that the--

ASSEMBLY.MAN · MI.LLER: Why should he. want to review it? .. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: · Again, Mr •• Ch$irinan, I felt that the-- . 
' . . . . 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Someone who w~s quali fled reviewed it 

for him. . The Administrative Law Judge did this. ·why should he sit 

· down-- let's go a step further. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, let me·ask the question Why--

ASSEMBLYMAN ·MILLER: Just a second, . Wayne; just a second. 

Suppose the Department said, . "We · are not going to go along with the 

Administrative Law Judge~ We are going to deny this man the right to 

b.id." Doesn't that put the Department in the position of legal 

entanglem·ent with Schiavone · because · they are being denied, when the 

Judge said it was .okay to let them? Now they are on the other side of 

the table. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ~RYANT: Mr~ Miller, the ohly reason I ~sked the 

question was because for some ~eason I imagine the regulations say that 

after _the Administrativ~ Law Judge does his thing, the final arbitrator 

is the Commissioner. Now, if that--
.. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: How was this man going to·support:--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: All Itm asking-- What you're telling me 

is that there is surplus language in the regulations. In other w·ords--

:ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: There is surplus language at this 

table. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No, surplus language . in the 

regulations. What are we supposed to do? Do the regulations .. say he is 

suppost!d to adopt,. has to adopt the Administrative Law Judge' s--

. ".SSEMBLYMAN MILLER: You have a professional, a lawyer like 

yourself, sitting up on the bench, and he is saying: "This is what it 

is .a I have reviewed the whole case." This man, who is not an 

attorney, who has the final say, says, "Hey, Judge, you're wrong. · We 

are not going to let .this man do ·it." · Where does that put the 

Department? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Is he an attorney? I don't know whether 

he is an attorney or not. We have plenty of--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: We have a lot of attorneys who make 

judge, but judges don't have to be attorneys. I understand that, too. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: There are a lot of att_orneyt,; who are not 

Administrative Law Judges ... - I cannot make the assumption. -- and there 

are a lot of non-attorneys who think they are. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: You know; you've been there. 

COMMISSIONER . BODMAN: Agreed. What is the question? 

Apparently you are suggesting that I erred in that I did not review the 

indictment itself, but just the findings of fact, . which I believe 

accurately reflect the indictment. I have no reason to believe that 

the Administrative Law Judge's decision would contain these two pages 

of citing the charges against Schiavone in an erroneous or 

irresponsible fashion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: My only comment is, if you didn't review 

it, you don't know. If you didn't review the document, his 

interpretation of the facts would be different than what your 

interpretation of the facts would be. 

COMMISSiONER BODMAN: Again, Mr. Chairman, it should be 

understood that this process went on, as I understand ·it, for some 

months, where this Administrative Law Judge sat there and reviewed 

65-some-odd documents. He made records of this case. That is exactly 

what we asked him to do. He made a prudent, impartial, fair judgment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: . You're just haranguing-- Now you're 

haranguing, Wayne. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: The fact of the matter is, I did. not 

believe that I would have been competent, having read an indictment. I 

have never read an indictment in my entire life, sir. I mean, I 

wouldn't even-- I must plead ignorance on that matter. I did not 

think I was competent; therefore, this was an appropriate, fair, and 

impartial way to proceed. . I think what you are suggesting is that is 

not the best way to proceed. You are questioning his abilities and 

whether he is an attorney or not. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I am not questioning that; they 

questioned it. I just wanted to make . the point that it doesn't 

necessarily mean he is _an attorney .because I don't. want anyone to have 

a false impres~ion. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Agreed •. I have no idea; I don't think 

it is relevant. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Mr. Chairman, I would like to make a 

point that you ·are talking about a Commissioner who is running one of 

the most important, d-ifficult· departments in ali of State government. 

You' te implying that. he should have sat down and somehow read, how.ever 

many pages the indictment is, l;lnalyzed it, and studied it, · and that · 

somehow that is the only thing he has to do. I mean, he delegated that 

to an Administrative Law Judge for_ an opinion. What more do you expect 

the Commissioner to do? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No~ he didn't delegate th~t; the 

regulations did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let me ask a question, if I may. One 

concern that I have, and it really doesn't deal with the Commissioner 

per se, but ·deals with · the advice, again, the Commissioner recei v~d-­

Here you have a transcript that is replete with, you know, a very 

damaging argument, if not evidence, on the part of the Attorney General 

as to why this contractor should be suspended. You have the Judge. 

basically rejecting those arguments and determining on. the facts that 

were presented to him that, in fact, the contractor should not be 

suspended. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: We should have an investigation of the 

Judge, Tom. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I 'm not concerned about that. But now you 

have the Commissioner f~ced with three options: He can either accept 

the Administrative Law Judge • s findings in toto, affirm the decision, 

and issue his approval of that decision; he can accept them with 

certain modifications; or, he can reject them. He chose to accept them 

and to offer some different. reasons as to why he was doing so, reasons 

independent of the decision itself. There was a change in emphasis. 
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In that process, I assume . you had _to seek advice from. that 

.selfsame Attorney General, who, for several weeks, had been telling the 

Judge, "No, throw these guys out." 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: In fact, it was not, Mr. Foy. It was 

another individual for that very reason. Clearly, as I understand the 

process, the Commissioner .sits, in effect, in a judicial capacity. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Right. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: And therefore,- presumably it · is 
intended that he or she be fair in their judgmento 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: · Did you get advice from a different 

Attorney General? That was my question. 
COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: The individual I consulted with when 

dealing with the affirmation and the change of emphasis, as you so 

smartly put it, was a different individual than the individual who 
argued the case on beh~lf of the Department~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Did that person provide. you with written 

rationale as to why you rendered your decision? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: No. 

·ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You simply had meetings and discussions. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That is·correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: No minutes were kept of those meetings and 

discussions? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Not to my knowledge. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You reviewed the matter, received their 
advice, and rendered your decision? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That is correct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. Who was that Qeputy Attorney 

General?· 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Frankly, I am sorry to say I do not 

remember. We will get it to you • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: All right. Will you please investigate and 

provide us with that information. Again, it is a situation in which, 

you know, you have one Deputy Attorney General spending months 

53 



investigating a situation, pres~nting a ca~e, and arguing one thing, _ 

and then you are obliged to see~ the advice of that same entity. 
. - . . 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: l will be the first to ·agree that it -is 

a curious situation one finds one's self in, but it didn-'t prevent me 

from ·-_:proceeding . with ·my·. duties· in ·this . regard, and to · be·--·· fair, 
. - . 

regardless of what position some_Attorney General may have t~ken~ _ 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Do you know wha~ the v&lue of the contracts 
. . . . .,. : . 

was that Schiavone Constru~tion held in the State at ·the time of your 

decision? That would ~e not just -for the Department of Transportation,_ 

but for 'the Garden State Parkway, - the · New Jersey Turnpike, arid New -

Jersey Transit? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I don't believe I -have the 

information •. · I just have ·-information relating to DOT. 
. -

ASSEMBLYMAN · FOY: How much did. they · have extended at ·the 

time? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Between October, 1984, when-this:whole 

indictment_ issue aro.se, and the present, Sc_hiavone has bid on 18 

contracts, and has been aw;3rded one, which was _this Edison Bridge 

contract we have been spending so_much fun_ time on recently. Since the 

Kean Administration took office, Schiavone Construction C6~pany has won 

five competitive bids, totaling $18.9 million. During Governor Byrne's 

second term, Schiavone won 14 _cont.r·acts for $150.2- million, of which 

about $40 million was M&E, ·Morris and Essex--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Did anyone ch~ck his contribution record in 

·the Democratic State Committee? (laughter)-· 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I don't know if anyone has taken the 

time to do that, Mr. Fay. The name of the individual 1 consulted with 

is Mary Ann Burgess, who is Head of the Administrative Law Section of 

the AG's office. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I think part of wtlat we are doing ·here 

also ~- frqm. your point of view, Mr. Miller,. Mr. Hardwick, and Mr. Fay 

-- is, ·if in fact we think the Administrative Law Judge should be· the 

final arbitrator and then when you set_ up another-- Just ~ike coming 

through the regular court, _then the Appellate, and then the Supreme 

Court. If the _ last person . is not · supposed · to totally review the 
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record, then maybe what we should be suggesting is a regulation change, 
and just let the Administrative Law Judge be the final arbitrator. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: No, I ~on't agree .with that. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I don't agree with that either. 

ASSEMBl. YMAN MILLER: I don't agre~ with that at all • What I 

am saying h~re is, I think the .Administrative law Judge, . again, being 

an employee of thisState, and being part of the-State involvement, if 

you will~- I think you have to depend upon him as an expert, arid give 

his word .a lot of credence when you make a decision in the 

Commissioner's position. I don't say to just throw it out. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I'm not saying throw it out. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: No, but I'm saying you have to do this. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: In this particular case, Mr. Chairman, 

again, I made some changes on emphasis, as Mr. Fey put it, and reviewed 

his case. The fact is, I agreed with that Administrative Law Judge, 

true, but that does not mean that we accepted his decision in toto and 

affirmed it as it stood. I don't believe that is an appropriate 

process to suggest. I do believe there was a fair ~eview here, perhaps 

no·t to what you consider to be your standards as an attorney, but in my 

opinion, I believe it was a fair review ·that I made of his 

recommend at ion, and it came to what I consider to be an intelligent 

conclusion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: May I ask a question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: - Mr. Fay and then Mr. Miller. 

ASSEM6L YMAN FOY: The other question I have is, once your 

decision was rendered, the Attorney General was afforded an opportunity 
to appeal your decision to the Appellate Division, was he not? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That's a legal opinion. I don't know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yes. I think there is a 45-day period from 

the final decision rendered by the Department head in which the 

Attorney General, or the party who continues to feel aggrieved -- in 

this case it was the Attorney General-- ·can appeal the decision to the 

Appellate Division. My question really is not for you again; it is for 

the Attorney General, as to why that wasn't done. If they felt so 

strongly in prosecuting the case, why then didn't the Attorney General 
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appeal your decision? If, in fact; they felt your affirmanc_e· of the 

Administrative Law Judge's erroneous decision, in their . opinion, was 

alsoerroreous, why wasn'tthere an appeal? 

See, the way ·the proc~ss works now is, . you. go before the 

Administrative law Judge,.· -he renders a· pr.oposed decision, and that 
. . . . -

' proposed decision,. in order to become law,, has to be· affirmed by the 

Commissioner. I can· tell you in my experience ·of practicing law in 

this State, Commissioners-almost invariably affi:rm decisions. However, 

I donit want to see them taken out of the process because the App,e11ate 

.Division can sometimes ·be troublesome to attorneys. I would· rather 

have an intermediate step after _I had gotten a wrong decision. from an 

Administrative Law judge, · in which I could then appeal to the 

Department Head and say, "Look,· he is off bat3e, and here's wny. Let me 

meet with you to discuss the practicalities of it." We do it all th~ 

time. I don't want to· see them eliminated; I want to see them as part 

of the process~ If we take it--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I do too, but I think they should review 

everything if, in fa~t,.. they are an arbitrator of· the information. 

·That is my only point. 

·ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well, I. think it would h~lp to have uniform 

standards of review imposed upon the Department heads so they would 

know what they can and what they cannot· consider.· Right now, I think 

it is out of the blue sky, as far as it· goes. It is wide-open. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Wayne, how does a · case get be fore an· 

· Administrative Law· Judge? Who brought· this case before the Judge? Who 

brings it up ther-e? · Who asked for the review by the Judge? 

ASSEtvBLYMAN FOY: Well, that is really not clear, because 

apparently, in this instance, Commissioner Sheridan took an unusual set 

of circumstances, in that _he was pro-active in sending it inmediately 

·to the Administrativ~ Law Judge-- What. norma11y happens is, .a 

· Commissioner would suspend; then it would be up to the person who was 

suspended to say, "1 ·want a hearing." Then, since it is what· is called 

a "contested case," it would -be referred over to the Office of 

Administrative Law, which hears contested cases. 
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In this instance, Commissioner Sheridan said it was a 

contested case himself. He said, "I don't want to render a decision ab 

initio." 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: In other wo.rds, the AG' s opiniQn was-~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Up-front he said, you know, "Let them. 

present a' case. Let the ·Attorney General pres.ent . a case and do it 

there at the outset." So, it's a little bit of a departure · from the 

norm. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: This is why lawyer's fees are so high, 
all those big words you fellows use all the time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ·HARDWICK: Right. I'm sorry, can I just get a 

clarification of something the Commissioner said? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: I'm· not sure I got the numbers 

straight, Commissioner, ·and I want to be sure. Did you say that during 

the Kean Administration Schiavone has only been awarded five contracts, 

totaling $1B.9 million--

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: --compared to the 

Administration, when they were awarded 16 contracts, 
second Byrne 
totaling $58 

million? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: No, no. During Syrne' s second term, 

they were awarded 14 contracts for $150.2 million, and during his first 

term -- Byrne's first t~rm -~ they were awarded 16 ·c~ntracts for $58.3 

million. So it's a total of what -- roughly, I guess, 30 contracts for 
about $208 million. That was during Byrne's time as Governor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: We should check into contributions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Let me ask a question. During the 

Byrne Administration, was Schiavone indicted by any other state? 
COMMISSIONER BODMAN: No, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: So we ·can diffuse this issue very quickly, 

all four of the Committee m~mbers sitting here today have been 

recipien~s of contributions from organizations which have been 

recipients of contributions from Schiavone Construction Company. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Have we? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yes, we have. I assume - you have _ been 

endorsed by the New Jersey Business and Industry Association, haven't 

you? They've gotten contributions from Schiavone. I have; Wayne has. 

I assume you received contributions frolll Constructors for Good 

Government. 1 have; Wayne has. And Schiavone has contributed to both 

of t.hem. · That doesn't impact me one way or the .Other. ·I can make 
\ 

objective decisions about issues ·notwithstanding the fact th-at 

organizations that _that company has supported have made- contributions 

to everyone sitting her~. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Mr. fay, are you finished? (affirmative 

response) let 's ask _ some quest ions because it is the process which 

disturbs me. Our minority leader asked that. Your decision was on 

August 22, right? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: . I believe it was August 20; it was 

announced August 21. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Assuming the procedures as outlined, if 

they were suspended, they would not have made a bid on this project, 

would they? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That is correct. Had they been 

suspended--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Suspended, and then the hearing process · 

went along-- They _would not have been able to bid. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Well, I suppose . that is a judgment 

call. It depends on the time frame in which~- Given the state of 

affairs here, yes, th~t is true. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Can anyone tell me whether New Jersey 

DOT has ever used a proposed suspension before? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I cannot say. Does -~nyone have a 

recollection? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: I ·just don't know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: In your memory -- you have 36 years . .-.-

do you ever remember having a proposed suspension or an outright 

_ suspension? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: Mr. Chairman, as the 

engineer, it is not a matter that I 9et involved with very often~ I do 
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get involved in matters when collusive bidding becomes an issue, 

·because that goes to things which I know something about. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Could the Department supply us with that 

information? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Your decision came out on August 22. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: August 20. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: August 20. On August 21, because yo~r 

decision basically says they had never been disbarred from any other 

state, and technically that is correct-- Had their bids been rejected 

in otner states at the time you make your decision? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: My understanding -- and Mr. Freidenrich 

may know more about this process -- is that the State of New York DOT, 

rather than having a process of suspension, permits all contractors to 

bid, and then summarily makes some decisions, apparently, as to whether 

. or ·not they want to accept those· bids. I believe that somewhat 

capsulizes the process, and that they, in fact, rejected a Schiavone 

bid, which was, in fact, a low bid on· a New York DOT project. I 

believe Schiavone went into court to contest that decision, and the New 

York court ultimately upheld the New York DOT. Is that a fair 

statement? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: That is my understanding as 

well, Commissioner. I only have th~t understanding from reading about 

it in the papers or in technical journals where it was written up. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Frankly, .my thinking on that process is 

that it is grossly unfair to permit any contractor to bid on a projett 

when you have no intention of awarding the bid, regardless of whether 

or not it is low. I think our process in New Jersey is definitely 

superior to that. That way, the contractor, if he is.suspended, knows, 

obviously, that he is not going to be awarded· the bid. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, since New York is a sister state, 

or close by-- You made the point that they have not been disbarred 

from bidding in any other state in terms of reaching your conclusion. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Didn't you think it was relevant that 

their bids had been rejected in another state? 
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. . 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I · just offered my opinion of that 

process, Mr. Chairman. I think it is unfair to cause a contractor t() 

bid when you have no intention. of giving him the bid. You're darned 

. right, · I · didn't· consider·· that to be an appropriate ·example· of. a 

. judie ious way to handle the . process. . _ . 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I'm not saying ·whether· it is judicious. 

I'm saying in terms of-~ We're_ talking about the integrity of the 

. prpcess; -that is· what the argument comes down ._to. Yet,. there ~s a 
state that is rejecting bids on the grounds of the integrity of the . 

process. There is a sister state--

.. COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I just told you,· I· have fought • with 

their very process. i \think it ·is unconscionable that New York DOT 

~auld pe~mit the compani 'to ·go to the expense· and trouble of 

putting together a bid, when they know darned well they don't intend to 

award the bid. Frankly, I think that is a case I would not consider as 

~eing germane to any decision I made ·with relation to New Jersey. I 

think it is an inappropriate process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANt: Are you saying the foundation of that 

decision to reject bids is not something we would look into? It 

· · happened· ptiot to· your decision. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I am aware of that. I am just telling 

you my opinion of their process. 

ASSEtvELYMAN BRYANT: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: And I believe-- Mr. Fteidenrich, do 

you want-to comment on that? Do you agree with that?· 

ASST. COMMISSIONtR FREIDENRICH: I believ~ to allow a 

contractor t.o submit. a bid; and then to say to him, ''You are allowed to 

submit a bid, but be aware that if you are the l()w bidder, we are not 

9.oing to award the contract"-- That kind of a _·process does not make 

much sense to me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, isn't that exactly what we.did? 

ASST. ·coMMISSIONER FREIDENRICH: Pardon. me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . Isn't that· exactly the result of what 

could happen-- . We did a proposed suspension to allow them to bid, but 

if we had come out with an opposite determination, we would have made 

them go through the whole process, and we would have rejected it. 
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Let 's assume on the twenty-second-- ··Let's assume just the 

reverse. Because we did a proposed suspension, ·they would have bid 

it.· Then we would have come out with our decision. Let's say the 
Administrative Law Judge said, "No, we don't think they should bid." 

Then if it was upheld by the Commissioner, . wouldn't we have done the 

same thing as New -York did, the thing you just condemned? 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: No~ I say no because, from 

my recollection of what I read in the newspapers, they did not debar 

the contractor; they did not preclude him from . submitting a bid. He 

then was the low bidder on a project. They said that he could not be 

awarded the bid, and then he bid a second project and was the low 

bidder. They allowed him to bid again after that. Then, when he was 

the low bidder on the second project--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I'm asking you, isn't that basically a 

fallacy? Maybe you have given me the best argument ofwhy we shouldn't 

have proposed suspensions, because-what you've done is induce people to 

do something, and then all of a sudden, we could come in with a 

determination that they should not. Tell me where,tne difference is. 

ASST. COMMISSIONER fREIDENRICH: The difference is that 

another action took place. If, indeed, prior to coming to the decision 

point of making an award to a contractor-- If, prior to coming to that 

decision, a subsequent action took place which, · in effect, debarred 

him, then you have another incident occurring. But, absent another 

action taking place, other than saying--

Well, frankly, I don't understand, nor do I intend to really 
second guess the whole process in New York. You know, I don't know how 

they arrived at it; 1 don't understand that they apparently do not have 

a debarment procedure. I suspect~ you know, just· from what I have read 

in the newspapers, that notwithstanding what has occurred, if they were 

to advertise . a project tomorrow that Schiavone was interested in 

bidding, they would still be permitted to bid, notwithstanding that 

even if he were the +ow bidder, on the history of the action they took 

on the other ones, ·they would not award it. frankly, I do not 

understand that kind of a process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Mr. Chairman, may I deviate for just a 

minute? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: -Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I have sat here now for two he~rings 

and, personally, I think we are beatl.ng a dead horse. 

you tell me why thi~ p$rticular contract was · 

Once again, can 

selected for 

investigation? · _Why not some oth~r contract? Why th~s particul$r one? 

· Why did you or someone s.elect this one to look into? 

ASSEMBLYMAN 'BRYANT: ·Because it has ·something to d9 with the 

integrity of the process. I d~n't know. of any other contractor we are 

dealing with in the State who has ·been indicted on 137 ·counts in 

another state, which is a sister state, and which deals with on~ of the 

issues we·deal with. We have minority_ contractors too, which brings in· 

a whole question. It seems to me we want to question what he is going 

to do on his contract for minority contractors also. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Oh, then what you are really saying here 

is, because he was indicted in New York on this minority situation, we 

. just warit to check in to see whether or not he is complying with all of 

the rules and regulations relating to that particular requirement. Is 

that what you're .saying? Is that the purpose of this·gathering? 

ASSEMBLYMAN roY: No. Let me give you some thoughts about-~ 

. ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Because if that is the purpose, I don't 

think it is necessary to go all through this routine. Why don't we 

ju~t check it out to. find out? 

ASSEMBLYMAN fdY: I think what happened here is -- and it is 

·.by the Commissioner's own recognition-- we had, with the Edison Bridge 

contract, which. subsequently Schiavone came to be involved in, a very 

unusual departure from the pattern of the normal contract process in 

. the Department. of Transportation--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Okay, we have been satisfied, Tom. 

ASSEMBLYMAN rOY: ·. -because of a lot of circunstances, okay? 

Ph$se one was to go through and- get all of that ptett y much cleared up, 

which we have done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Yes, we're satisfied. 

ASSEMBLYMAN roY: The second phase of that deals -with the 

focus of Schiavone being-~ See, sometimes there are things that raise 

questions in_ . people's minds. It could be pure coincidence, or 
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serendipity, from his standpoint, that just about the same time all of 

these things were happening with respect to_ the Route 9 Bridge 

contrac£, the decision _came down to giv-e Schiavone the ability to 

continue to bid on work, despite the fact that _there was a cloud, and 

that is all it is. It is an indictment; the man is not convicted, and 

due process' in my opinion, mandates that he be given .the benefit. of- a 

doubt. I am still a_ firm believer that you are innocent until proven 

guilty, although that doesn't seem to be the popular theme anymore in 

this co~ntry. But, the fact of the matter is, the clouds were r~isedl 

in my opinion, in the public's mind, and it was incumbent upon this 

Conmittee to investigate the matter fully to determine precisely what 

happened, to remove, ~t least in New Jersey, any kind of cloud over the 

process, ih terms of what happened. 

You know, he gets the letter saying, "Hey, happy days, you 

are the bidder,'' on August 22, and he has just been restored, in a 

sense, on August 21. The. timing raised some serious questions in 

people's minds. Perhaps it is the function of the diligence of the 

fourth estate, the press, which raised a lot of these questions. You 

know, when you hear that the public is interested in something that is 

the public's business, I think it is incumbent upon us to act. I think 

we have done very -well in satisfying one aspect of the situation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I heat you, Tom, but first of all, I 

would not have known anything about this if someone hadn't called a 

l'fleeting and said, "Look, we are going to check this particular contract 

out.'' I don't· know the reasons for it, except tha~ Schiav~ne's name is 

one, and as Assemblyman Bryant points out, the minority situation, to 

make sure they are in compliance, which could have been taken care of 

· on the side without any of this sort of stuff. We have had the hearing 

so far, and what I have heard up to this particular point is that the 

contract was awarded properly; there has been nothing improper on the 

part of DOT's operation of this whole thing up to this particular 

point. 

Now, what are we trying to determine? Are we trying to find 

out about your point, the point of the proper awarding? Are we trying 

to find out--
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ASSEMBLYMAN ·roY: . Lam trying to. find out very spe~ifically~-
; . ' 

It really has· little to. do with Commissioner Bodman, because I am less 

troubled with his decision to affirm the Administrative Law Judge, than 

I am with the decision of Commissioner Sheridan to . take an unusual 
. ' . . .. . 

route from the rol.lte that i!;5 normal! y teken. in. these .~ases. l want to 

find out if Schiav.one . Construction r.eceived · favorable,· differential 

tteat~ent in this matter initially. · 

The normal • route is to suspend · someqne ; they .. can't· bid· ·t)t do 

business dut."ing the time they are suspended. Instead, there was a 

proposed suspension, and he was permitted to continue to bid and do· 

work all along with a number of State agencj.e~. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: No, no, the normal route--· 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK:. You missed a point, Tom. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY:_ Yes, I have a million and a. half dollars 

worth of contracts from the Garden . State Parkway and the New Jersey 

·Turnpike Authority, ·which he got during t~_at period. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: You missed a point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: If he had. been su.spended, he could not have 

bid.' 

ASSEMBlYMAN HARDWICK: The normal route is, it is up to the 

Commissioner to suspend.. or not to suspend, . depending upon his 

discretion. That is· the regulation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN aRYANT: No hearing is ever scheduled unless the 

Commissioner t'akes an action. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: There is nothing to prohibit that. 

The Commissioner uses his. judgment .. to investigate, and to decide 

wnet.her or not to suspend someone. · 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: ·It is· irregular; that is wh,y I asked the 

question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: That's just it. He didn't do what the law 

_gave him the authority. to do,: either suspend or not suspend. Instead,. 

he invented an artifice, the proposal to suspend, which got him off'the 

hook. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I disagree with you •. 
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. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Clearly, if there had been a suspension,· 
he never would have gotten this contract in the beginning, because he 

would not have been able to bid. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: · Wait a minute now. Counsel just 

pointed out Regulation 16:44-8.10 to me, ·which ·says: "Insofar as 

practical, prior notice of any proposed suspension shall be given to 

the Attorney General and .the Treasurer," which implies the regulations 
have the concept of a proposed suspension. You asked where it was. It 

is enbodied right here, the concept of a proposed suspension. It says 
right "here, "Any proposed suspension shall be given to the Attorney 

General." It was not made up; it was in the regulation already. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No, no, that is a notice to the Attorney 

General, so that the Attorney General c~n tell you wh~t~- · 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: No, you're missing my point. The 

point is, the concept of a proposed suspension is in the regulations. 
It is right here. You said there i.s no place for such a thing as a 
proposed suspension, and clearly there is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No, you're misteading it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: I am not misreading· anything. Read 

the thing. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Counsel can tell you procedurally it 

only allows one procedure. That is to notify the Attorney General that 

you are thinking about·it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: You said. that nowhere in the 

regulations is there such a thing as a proposed suspension.· It's right 
here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: To the actual bidder. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: It's·right here. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: It is not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HARDWICK: Well, you're not seeing it because you 

don't want to. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: He tells the contractor, "You are 

suspended." He tells the Attorney General, "I am suspending this guy. 

Get your troops ready, we are going to court." That is what he tells 

them. I mean, that i~ pretty simple. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Let me ask you another question. 
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_ASSEMBLYMAN . fOY: 

understand that one •. 

You don't even have . to be a lawyer · to 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: . Do you, or does anyone-- . 

ASSEMBLYMAN . BRYANT: Mr. Miller, I want to ~sk you ~o direct 
- . . . . . ··. 

_your questions to the Convnissioner. I am not . here to answer questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Oh, _ yes you are. You're chairing this 

ttling. You ir~ aaking the questions, and l have the right to ask you 

questions :pertaining to your procedure. · 

I want to ·know,. do you know of anything criminal in nature 

associated with this part iculElr contract? Do you have Elnything to·· back 

you up? Does any()ne know anything about something of a criminal 

nature? . 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANl: .. I am worried about th_e integrity of the 

·process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I asked you a quest ion; never mind the 

integrity.·_ of the process. Do you· know anything criminal. in nature'? 

Yes or no? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Do I know anything criminal in nature? 

· ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Criminal in nature .-'- as~ociat~d with 

this? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: 6y the time I am finished with this 

. hearing, I might find out something. I don't know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Do you know anything now? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: 

piece of paper--

ASStMBL YMAN FOY: 

Do I know anything now? 

Right now. Do you have Elnything, a 

Who is the crimina!, ·the Commissioner, 

Schiavone, who are you talking about? 

·ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: All I'm saying-- Wait a minute; hold 

it. 

.ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do I know anything that Schiavone has done 

criminally? · The answer is no, other than that indictment, which is 

merely an indictment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: The Speaker was in her~ last week and he 

made some pretty damning statements in my book, indicating to me that 
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there is something wrong here someplace. As a matter of fact, he told 

me on the side, "Don't stick your neck out too far because this thing 

hasn't opened up all the way yet." 

Now,· I'm asking you, is there . anything here criminal in 

nature that you know about? Because if th'ere is, I think we are in 

violation because you didn't go to the AG with it. That's all I'm 

saying. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Mr. Miller, this hearing is about the 

integrity of the process, the whole thing the regulations deal with • 

. One of the things is indictments. One of the things is, what were the 

circumstances changed from October 24 to August 20 which made the 

Department change--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: There is nothing criminal in nature 

associated with this. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: It still might mean that they should not 

be--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Wait a minute. We don't have it in our 

authority to investigate. 

·ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That is for the SCI; it's for the Attorney 

General; it's for the U.S. Attorney. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: That's why I'm asking. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That's where that stuff belongs. All I 

want to do is find out about their procedures. We found there was a 

gap in one of their procedures, and they are going to clear it up~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Then you're saying there is nothing 

criminal, right? 

· ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I don't know. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Let me read from a copy of a lette~ to 

the Governor from Mr. Karcher. It says: "I suggest to you in the 

· strongest and mpst emphatic terms that this is not the simple problem 

that your Commissioner" -- meaning me . -- "suggests, but entails a 

sinister and perhaps illegal attempt to manipulate the bidding 

process." That letter is signed Alan J. Karcher, Speaker. 

ASSEMBLYMAN l-1ILLER: That's right; that is what I want to 

know. 
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copy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN. BRYANT: ·Is anyone-carbon copied on that? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: No, sir. I will. ~e happy to give you a . 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: I never saw that letter in my life, don't 
. . . . 

. . . . 

·know anything about it, and I don't believe that .is the purpo~e of 

these hearings, ·from my perspective • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: That is not the .purpose. for which I 

called the hearings. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: let·me see it. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: You are welcome to get a photocopy of 

it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: We are in the wrong ball· park if there 

is something wrong legally or criminally here. Then it goes to the AG, . 

not here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . Well, M:t. Miller, I. did not call the 

hearings on the position that something is illegal. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN:· Mr. fay, in a telegram to the Governor, 

the Speaker said, "Extraordinary questions of governmental efficiency 

and ethics are involved in this situation.'' So 1 assume there are 

some--

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: I don't know about the ethics situation, 

but I think efficiency in departmental fegulations -- I' think . that is 

admitted, as far as that goes. 

COMMISSIONER 60DMAN: Agreed. I am· not quarreling with the 

purpose of the hearing. I am simply stating that there ·are some 

allegations, Mr. fey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: No one has accused anyone of . anything 

unethical. That's news to me. He is asking the Governor to 

· investigate the matter. We didn't bother to wait for the Governor; we 

did it on our own. My concern focuses on' the precise authority that 

thi~ Committee has, which is really, ih a sense, a certain amount of 

oversight authority over your Department and its activities. Ou:r 

inquiry, in my opinion, has to be based upon whether, given the 

questions that have been raised about the situation, the Department 

acted properly. 
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I don't think there is any question that you acted properly 

on the first part of it. Now we are just trying to find out if you 

acted properly on the second part of it. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Well, I think this question was raised, 

and .it is worthy of a reading from a News Tr.ibune article dated October 

B, 1985, and I quote: "Once. again we see a situation in which a major 

·contract has been awarded to a major contributor to the Governor's 

reelection effort amid · signs that delays and other problems are 

. developing, Bryant said." I assume that means you, Mr. Chairman. I 

would construe that as being an allegation that in some way favorable 

treatment was supplied to Schiavone Construction Company in. exchange 

for contributions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, one thing I have ·discovered is 

that the procedures are unusual, and I want to know why. And I want to 

know the opinions as to who planned those.things. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I see, but the question on the floor at 

the moment is one of purpose and allegation. You are suggesting-- I 

agree with .you, Mr. Fay. I think this is a unique situation and it 

deserves this hearing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT1 There are a few purposes~ 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: But there have been some suggestions 

made in the public media and elsewhere that perhaps there are more -­

to use the Speaker's words -- "sinister activities" taking place here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Mr. Commissioner, you' r~. asking me what 

the purposes of these hearings are. The purposes are twofold. Number 

one is, you started out with a project and it is supposed to get done. 

It is not getting done. I under$tand it is now going to be done. 

There was a low bidder, and the procedures through which that low 

bidder went have now been called into question. Number two is, we have 

had a proposed suspension of the individual who ended up winning the 

contract. There are a lot of questions which have been raised in my 

mind.· 

With all those questions -- and I am not saying there is 

anything illegal -- maybe we need to tighten up the process so these 

things will not happen. We should either do one thing or do the other. 
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COMMlSSIONER BODMAN: We have concurr~d .. in that, Mr. 

Chairman,·and we·will review those regulations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN aRYANT: And that . is the purpose of this · 

Committ~e,- tQ examine not only what has happened, but to ascertain if . . 

there are .. procedures we need· to tighten up in our . Transpor~ation 

Department. 

Now, if you_disagree, Mr. Miller, that's fine. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: . ·. Then. the statement you made· to the 

paper ·th~t in some way we were treating Schiavone favorably in exchange 
·• . ' . 

· for political contributions was not accurate? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Well, it does seem ironic tome that the 

Appellate Court of New York says· there are enough facts~ and all of a 
. sudden, you tell me you never ·reviewed the indictment. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN:. I am suggesting-~ You just finished 

telling me, Mr. Chairman, what ·the purpose of this hearing was~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANt: It concerns me that. we argued that they 

shouldn't bid, and I just want to know what circumstances changed in 

the Department's mind from. October 24, 1984 to- August 20. I can't 

understand that. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: . Well, in the explanation . of your. 

purpose here, you made no reference to this particular comnent that was 

made in the newspaper, so I assume that . is a moot issue. 

right? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: About- what? 

Is that 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: About, once again: "We see a situ at ion 

in which a major contract has been· awa~ded to a major contributor to 

the . Governor's ·r-eelection effort amid signs that delays and other 

problems are developing, Bryant said." . I interpret that · as an 

allegation that--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: . It's a statement of fact •. 

COMMISSIONER. BODMAN: I see. Are 'you suggesting something 

. beyond that? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: No, I stated a fact~ I have a right to 

state facts. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Absolutely. 

70 



ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: But you're casting aspersions upon the 

·integrity of the Department. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I 'm asking, what ·has changed l.n the 

Department? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: In the very. same article, the Speaker 

.is quoted as saying: "They rejected the low bidder so they could give. 

the contract to the second low bidder, Schiavone." 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You would have to ask the Speaker about 

that. What I am asking you is this: · What . aajor changes, from the 

standpoint of the Department, happened between October 24 and August 

20, of one year? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: What major changes?. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: The Administrative Law Judge made a 

ruling after exhaustive hearings and made a recommendation to me. The 

other major change, frankly, was that Mr. Sheridan left office and I 

took office. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: And that changed _t.be Department's view? 

Is that what you're telling me? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I didn't say the Department's view. 

You didn't ask that question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: l did. That is What I asked. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let me ask this question. Commissioner, 

did. you have occasion to review this matter with Commissioner 

Sheridan? Did you ever have any discussions from when you took office 

to when you ultimately had to reach your decision? Did you talk to 

John Sheridan about it? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Yes, I did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Did you get the benefit of his thinking 

about what he did originally?. 
rf 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Yes, I did, both before and after the 

fact. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: All right. Then my quest ion is, did he 

~till advocate the suspension of Schiavone Construction? 
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COMMISSIONER BODMAN: He never advocated the suspension, Mr. 
foy. He advocated the proposed suspension. He felt that my action was 

·appropriate. I just_ spoke with him three ·or four days ago. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: All right. He -concurs with what you did, 

·based upon the Administrative Judge's decision? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: . Yes, sir. 

ASSEteL YMAN FOY: But he never advocated the actual 

suspension? He never suspended? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: He did not. 
· ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: That. is the point I am focusing on. That 

is why I'm here in terms of these things. I want to know why. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Why the. proposed suspension· instead of a 

suspension. As far as I am concerned, I think you are into semantics. 
ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: No, it ·is not . semantics. It is a very 

practical situation that has an enormous economic impact on· the 

contractor. If. I suspend meaning the Commissioner 

notwithstanding the fact that the person who is suspended then asks for 
a hearing, he is not pe~mitted to bid on State work during the period 

of that suspension. If I propose to suspend, about which there is a 
question as to the authority of the Commissioner to invent that 

particular aspect-- · If 1 propose to suspend, then, · in fact, he can 

continue to bid. He was able to bid on this project ·and he did, in 

fact, bid on other projects. 

So, they have a tremendous practical economic impact, those 

little semantics. Millions of dollars are involved in those sem~ntics, 
and I want to know why that occurred. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Will you agree with me, Tom, that the 
Commissioner does have the right, does have the final say as to whether 

to grant contracts or not grant contracts? 
ASSEMBLYMAN fOY: Absolutely. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: We agree with that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I don't quest ion Commissioner Bodman's 

·decision to agree with the Administrative Law Judge. 1 would probably 

have done the same thing. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Would you also agree -then that if he 

didn't put the words "proposed suspension"_,. · If he just sent the man a 

letter and said, "Look, we want to sit down and have a hearing with 

you"-- period_-- "about the situation. Come on in, we want to talk to 

you"--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: He would not have gotten this contract. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I'm saying, "Just sit down, we want to 

have a talk with you." Never mind even men~l.oning the statu\~· "We 

want to sit down and have a discussion with you about the situation •11 

He has a right to do that too, doesn't he? I mean, he has the final 

say; he has a right to do it. You can't disagree with that.· 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: No, I think that is within his discretion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: But_ it is highly unusual. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Fine, but he has that discretion. All 

he did was point out, "Here's a statute. -We're proposing suspension, 

but we want to talk to you first." I see no;hing wrong with that 

either, except that you're saying in those 10 days, he could have been 

awarded contracts. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Mr. Foy, I understand--

ASSEMBL. YMAN FOY: Suppose he had been awarded contracts in 

those 10 days? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: --your concern, but it should be 

pointed out that my people tell me that at the time former Commissioner 

Sheridan made the decision to issue this prop6sed suspensionj it was, 

in fact, widely publicized. The Department issued press statements to 

the effect. Frankly, here we are, a- year later, questioning _that 

decision. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I am questioning the decision in light of 

all of the facts which have emerged. What brought it to my attention 

was the Route 9 Bridge issue. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I understand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That is how Schiavone got involved. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: It just should be noted that at the 

time, they tell me, a press statement was .issued -- a year ago -­

putting forth the then Commissioner's decision. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: · Let me just say something for the record. 

· I don't hav~ a particular hang-up about the contribution is~ue as far 

· -as this goes. 1 know there h~s been some commentary inJ.he paper about 

that, but, you know, I did my homework. I have a list of all the money · 
. -

Schiavone has contributed to anybody and everybody.· .. ·His lawyers ·are·._ 

. here. ·. I know how much they gave. ·they have been very ;c3enerous to ·the 

Democratic party. You know; that is incidental ··as_ ~far as all: this 

goes. What concerns. me is the.;..- . 

.issue. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Well; I'm.glad that is not an issue~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: --procedural process; the other is . not an 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: How come I'm not·on that list, Tom? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Pardon? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: How_ com~ I'm not on that list? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well, you're not on the list individually, 

·.but· some of the people who g$ve to you are on the list~· 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Oh, okay •. · I just don't want to be 

. dis~rimihated against. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: The. process-- This is . something you 

might not know. EPA has also stopped them from working. It just seems 

·stran·ge to me that New York, Federal people--

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: It can be very strange, but I see 

nothing illegal or wrong with what--

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Why, all of a sudden, . is New J~rsey 

adopting different procedures? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I think first·we ought to--

_. ASSEMBLYMAN. BRYANT: Maybe you're right; maybe Mr. Sherid;m 

is the only one who can-answer that. Maybe the Attorney General is the 

only one who can answer that. 1 em going to have ~o bring them in to 

find out those answers. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Obviously, I made the final deci.sion, 

Mr.- Chairman, and I · stand by that decision. Obviously, it is a 

_judgment call. You can quarrel with and you can ·question. my judgment 

i.n the matter, just like you can question Mr. Preiden{'ich' s judgment on 

the Edison Br id9e thing we finished. discussing a while ago. . But the 
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fact is, it is a judgment call,; I felt there was sufficient evidence 

· presented by that Administrative Law Judge to co.ncut with his opinion, 

and 1 stand by it. It's that simple, and, frankly, I don't care what 

New York does. We are not in New York; we're in New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: We're not the.federal government either, 

but they did it too. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: That is correct. That is clearly within 
their authority. I don't know l.f they asked some Administrative· Law 

Judge or some other non-biased third party to review the matter in. as 
exhaustive a fashion as we did. I don't know what process they used, 

and, frankly, I don't care. I believe this was a clear, just, and 

appropriate process, and it was a fair decision based upon the facts. 

And that's it. There is really not much more to discuss. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: But you only reviewed some of the facts. 

COMMISSIONER SODMAN: Excuse me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: You only reviewed some of the facts. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN~ I teviewed what I considered to be a 

sufficient number of facts to make a decision. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Mr. Chairman, you know, something ·good 

is coming out of this. I am more impressed with DOT today than I was 

before we started the hearings. I think they really handled 

themselves very well. They are doing a commendable job in supplying 

all you have asked them to supply. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Are there any other questions for the 

Commissioner? I know I am going to have to bring the Attorney General 
in because he has a· lot to do with this. I will probably have to b~ing 

Mr. Sheridan in too~ because I still want to know proc.edurally why we 
are doing some things, and if it was a unique situation. We are 

getting into all these unique situations surrounding one contract. 

Those things sort of glare when there are so many unique things · 

happening at one time, in my mind, procedurally. We want to find out 

who is making these determinations to allow these unique situations to 

continue and what we should be doing, whether through regulation or 

through statute, to make sure these things do not happen in the future, 

and whether, in fact, there was actually a decision to allow this 

unique procedure~ 
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Does 'anyone have any other questions of the COJDmissioner? 
. . 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I just want to . say: one last word, Mr. 

Chairman. Once again, i think this is a witch . hunt. · I see nothing 

here whatsoever' 81)d I will guaJ:'antee you you will f.ind nothing on the . 

bottom lin~, unless Mr. Karcher has something he is not.letting us know. 
. . 

·about from the statements he has made in· the papers. Other than that, 

as far as I am concerned,- we are ·wasting our· tim~ • 

. ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: let me answer that. We were going along 

pretty well until yol)·got onthe soapbox there. Ifth1s was really and 
. . . . . . ~ . 

·truly a~y sort of a political witch hunt, Commissioner Bodman has had a 

_longtime, political affiliation and relationship with .one. of the 

principals of the company we are concerned about. Not once in this 

hearing did anyone bring that into account, because I have more respect 

for. Co~missioner Bodman as a. person, and as. a public official. No one· 

·got l.nto that. If it was going to be political, if we were going to 

try to t.hrow ·some mud against the wall-~ You can make anything out of 

·nothing if you want to politically• We didn't focus on that. 

As for. the other· business, the contributions, that is 

tangential as far as I · am · concerned. I want to · know what the 

procedures are. I'm satisfied that the professional civil servants in 

the Departrnent acted responsibly. l think·· the Commissioner exercised 

his judgment. I may ~isagree with _what he did; I may . agree with what 

he did, but that is incidental. That is his role in the process. 

Our role in the process; and the one which I will stand by in 

terms of protecting the integrity of this branch of State government, 

is our ability.and obligatiqn to go.in and investigate where issues of 

serious consequence to the public's business are raised. That is ·what 

this Committee hearing is all about. · It is not a political witch hunt, 

be~ause if_ someone wants to go on a witch . hunt and they need someone to . 

gQ···in and investigate, l am the guy to do· it. I. could have raised a 

lot of questior:'s that I didn't· raise because they were inappropriate. 

I don't believe you do those kinds of things. 
. . 

So, I take offense to · any_ accusation _that efforts by, _at 

lea•t this person on t~e Committee, involved any kind of a political 

witch hunt. I don't play those games. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Well, I suppose the fact that this 

bridge is in the nineteenth district, Mr. Karcher's district, has no 

effect upon this whole hearing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I don't care wher~- the bridge is. What 

difference does it make? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Come on, will you? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: It's a contract. I wouldn't care where 

it was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: If I want to do _something for everybody, 

look at the bridge down in my district. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: I think we fixed· that bridge, didn't 

we, Mr. Foy, the Rancocas Bridge? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yes, we opened ~hat bridge, Commissioner. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Commissioner, we want to thank you and 

your staff for co~ing. We will continue to ask questions through the 

Attorney General. You might have to come back because I don't know 

whether-- Would you also supply us with the name of the person who 

argued the hearing from the Attorney General's staff? 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: I think you gave us the name of the 

person who helped you with . your opinion. We would like to hear from 
those individuals. Also1 there might be a third person-~ I'm not sure 

it ·is the same person -- who made .a decision on the first contract. 

And whether, in fact, if you didn't get the rating, you never looked at 

the other ones. If there are three different individuals, we would 
like to have those names. We appreciate it. 

COMMISSIONER BODMAN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BRYANT: Thank you. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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